
CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, JANUARY 9, 2023 7:00P.M.  

Forthosewishing tolisten livetothemeeting, pleasegotoci.shorewood.mn.us/current_meeting for
themeeting link. Contact thecityat952.960.7900during regular business hourswithquestions.  

AGENDA

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL MEETING

OathsofOffice
DustinMaddy, Council Member
GuySanschagrin, CouncilMember

A. PledgeofAllegiance

B. RollCall
MayorLabadie___  

Johnson___  
Callies___  
Maddy___  

Sanschagrin___  

C. ReviewandAdoptAgenda

Attachments

2. CONSENT AGENDA TheConsentAgendaisaseriesofactionswhicharebeingconsideredforadoptionthisevening
underasinglemotion.  Theseitemshavebeenreviewedbycitycouncilandcitystaffandthereshallbenofurtherdiscussionbythe
counciltonightontheConsentAgendaitems.   Anycouncilmemberormemberofcitystaffmayrequestthatanitemberemovedfrom
theConsentAgendaforseparateconsiderationordiscussion.  Ifthereareanybriefconcernsorquestionsbycouncil, wecananswer
thosenow.  

Motion toapprove itemsontheConsent Agenda & AdoptResolutions Therein:  

A. CityCouncil WorkSession Minutes ofDecember 12, 2022 Minutes

B. Municipal Canvas BoardMeeting ofDecember 12, 2022 Minutes

C. CityCouncil Regular Meeting Minutes ofDecember 12, 2022 Minutes

D. Approval oftheVerifiedClaimsList ClaimsList

E. Approve MasterFeeSchedule CityClerk/HRDirector Memo
Resolution 23-001

F.  2023Mileage Reimbursement Rate CityClerk/HRDirector Memo

G.  OutofStateTravelPolicy Approval CityClerk/HRDirector Memo

H.  Authorize Advertisement forPublicWorksLight Director ofPublicWorksMemo
Equipment Operator



CITYCOUNCILREGULARMEETINGAGENDA
Page2

I. Accept Donations fromXcelEnergy, JoeyNova’sPizza, Park/RecDirector Memo
Excelsior EyeCare, andCaribou Coffee forArcticFever Event Resolution 23-002

J. Approve HireofRinkAttendants Park/RecDirector Memo

K. Approve Strawberry LaneStreetReconstruction Project CityEngineer Memo
Agreements Resolution 23-003

L. Approve Extension ofFinalPlatApproval for “Excelsior Woods” Planning Technician Memo
Location: 20325 Excelsior Boulevard Resolution 23-004
Applicant:  RedGranite Construction

M.  COVIDSickLeavePolicy CityClerk/HRDirector Memo
Resolution 23-005

N. Approve Recreation Specialist Appointment Park/RecDirector Memo

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR Thisisanopportunityformembersofthepublictobringanitem, whichisnoton
tonight'sagenda, totheattentionofthemayorandcouncil. Whenyouarerecognized, pleaseusetheraiseyourhandfeature.  Please
identifyyourselfbyyourfirstandlastnameandyouraddressfortherecord.  Afterthisintroduction, pleaselimityourcommentsto
threeminutes.  Noactionwillbetakenbythecouncilonthismatter, butthemayororcouncilcouldrequestthatstaffplacethismatter
onafutureagenda. (NoCouncil Actionwillbetaken)    

4. PARKS

A. Review security options forManorPark Park/RecDirector Memo

B. Review options forFreeman ParkTrailRehabilitation Project Planning Director Memo

5. ENGINEERING/ PUBLIC WORKS

A. Authorize Eminent Domain – Strawberry LaneStreet CityEngineer Memo
Reconstruction Project, CityProject19-05 Resolution 23-006

B. Change Order forStreetSweeping Disposal CityEngineer Memo

6. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS

A. 2023Annual Appointments andDesignations CityAdministrator Memo
Resolution 23-007

B. Approve Appointment ofParkCommissioners CityClerk/HRDirector Memo
Resolution 23-008

7. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS

A. Staff

B. MayorandCityCouncil

8. ADJOURN



2A

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2022 5:30P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat5:30P.M.  

A. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Councilmembers Johnson, Labadie, Gorham, andCallies; City
Attorney Shepherd; Interim CityAdministrator Shukle; Finance Director Rigdon;  
Planning Director Darling; Director ofPublicWorksBrown; and, CityEngineer
Budde

Absent: None

B. Review Agenda

2. REVIEW REAFFIRMATION OFBEE SALE RESOLUTION

Planning Director Darling explained thatatarecentWorkSession theCouncil hadexpressed
concern thatthewording inResolution No. 14-066doesnotallowforgradual implementation of
theplanfromIPMInstitute.  Shestated thattheyhadalsoexpressed concern thatthecostoffull- 
scale implementation oftheplanwouldexceed theamount thathadbeententatively budgeted
whichwas $45,000/year.  Sheexplained thatatthatmeeting, staffwasdirected topreparesome
changes totheresolution withthegoalofreflectingarealistic implementation process.  Shenoted
thatCityAttorney Shepherd haddrafted aresolution thatincorporated the comments madeby
theCityCouncil.  Sheexplained thatstaffhadsentoutane-mailblast totheresidents thatwould
receive ordinance changes andhadalsoputinformation ontheCity’swebsite.  Staff received 5
e-mailswhicharenowpartofthepublic record from:  TomandSandyAhlstrom; JudyChucker;  
JeffDinsmore andPatricia Houser; PatArnst; andDanKoehler.  Sheexplained thatstaffwould
likethemtoreview theproposed language intheresolution aswellasthepublic comments that
werereceived.  

MayorLabadie stated thatinthepast, shehadmadereference toherself, Councilmember Siakel
andCouncilmember Johnson werepartoftheoriginal resolution.  Sheexplained that thiswasnot
accurate andrather thanCouncilmember Johnson, itwasCouncilmember DickWoodruff.  She
notedthattheproposed resolution hasbeenreviewed byInterimCityAdministrator Shukle, City
Attorney Shepherd, Public WorksDirector Brown, andParksandRecreation Director Crossfield.   
Shethanked theresidents whotookthetimetosubmit comments totheCityinthismatter.   

Councilmember Callies stated thatshethinks theproposed resolution isactually worse thanthe
firstversion intermsofwhatitistryingtodo.  Shestated thatshebelieves what theCityhad
intended todowasprovide moreclarification, sothattheCityandstaffhavesomemoredirection
astowhatwilloccur.  Shestated thatinthat regard, sheagrees withthecomments madeby Ms.  
Chucker, Mr. Dinsmore, andMs. Houser.  Shestated thattheideaofbestpractices to ‘refrain’  
fromtheuseofchemicals isreallymeaningless because youcannothavebestefforts tostop



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
DECEMBER 12, 2022
Page 2of7

doingsomething because thatsimplymeansyouarenotdoingit.  Shestated thatshefeelsthat
theCityisbasically beingheldhostage bythisresolution andthattheCitydidnotneeda
resolution inorder toimplement anappropriate pestmanagement plan.  Shestated thatshethinks
werearetwoseparate issueshereandnotedthatshewould liketheretobemorepublic inputon
thespecifics ofwhattheCitywants toimplement withapestmanagement plan, buttherewasan
e-mailblastandtherearejustahandfulofpeopleoutoftheseven thousand residents thathave
commented.  Shestated thatshebelieves thatthereistoomuchfocusonthisresolution and
everydayitiseffecting whattheCitydoes.  Sheexplained thatshebelieved thattheCityneeds
torescind theresolution andmovetowards thenextsteptoimplement theplan.  Shereiterated
thatshedidnotbelieve thattheCityneeded tohavetheresolution inordertodecidehowthey
wanttoimplement theplan.  Shestated thatshedidappreciate thereport thatwasputtogether
byIPMInstituteandfeltthattheyhadsomegoodideasandfeltthattheyalsorecognized thatit
wasnotazerotolerance policy, but, unfortunately, thatiswhattheresolution says.  Shestated
thatshedidnotthinktheresolution washelpful inproviding guidance totheCityandfeelsitshould
bescrapped.  Shenotedthatshedidnotfeeltheproposed resolution tookintoaccountanyof
thevariables thatmaybepresent throughout theCity.  She explained thattheconsultants had
stated thattherearetimeswhensystemic pesticides needtobeusedwhichwouldnotbeallowed
under theexisting ortheamended resolution.  Sheexplained thatshewould liketoseetheCity
moveonfromthisandrescind theresolution because itisnotalawandithashadunintended
consequences.  Shestatedthatherothersuggestion forconsideration downtheroadistoputa
question ontheballotatthenextelection andgetcitizen inputastohowmuchtheywanttospend
andfindouthowconcerned theyareabout implementing thistypeofplan because decisions
madesurrounding thisissuecouldpotentially raiseeveryone’staxes.  Shereiterated thatshe
feelstheCouncil needs tomoveonfromthisresolution andstartdoingtheworkdetermining what
theCitywants todointermsofhandling chemicals onpublicproperties andawaytoimplement
theplans, gradually.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thatheagreed thatthenewresolution language isbadbecause
itputstheCityinanambiguous areaofwanting tofollow, butnotquite following thepolicy.  He
stated thathedidnotthinkhewouldgoasfarasrescinding theexisting BeeSafepolicybecause
hedoesnotthinktheCityhasgiventheeffortafairshakeyet.   Hestatedthathewascoming in
withtheideaoftablinganyaction fornowbecause thereisaplan.  Henotedthathefeelsthat
Councilmember Callies interpretation oftheplanmaybeabitoff.  Hestated thathethinks the
recommendations aregetting theCityawayfromtheredzoneofsystemic pesticides infavorof
moving intotheyellowzoneof ‘notasbad’.  Hestated thathebelieved that thereareways for
theCitytofollowtheexisting resolution without getting intothedanger zoneofsuperharmful
chemicals.  Hestated thatShorewood wasthefirstCitytodothisandtheyare0-6onthepledges
thattheymade.  Heasked thattheCitygiveitatleastayearunder thenewPublicWorksDirector
andnewCityAdministrator beforeanychanges aremade.  Hestated thathethinkssomeofthe
solution will involve administration aswellas oversight.  Hereiterated thathedidnotthink the
nextstepshouldbetorescind theresolution withoutevertryingwouldnotlookgood fortheCity.   

MayorLabadie stated thatShorewood wasthefirstCityintheStatetopassaresolution ofthis
natureandnotedthatmanyothershavepassed onesincethattime, andhaveusedthelanguage
intheCity’sresolution asamodel fortheirs.  Shestated thattabling thisforatleastayearmeans
theresolution isstill thereandputsstaffinabadspotastowhatshouldbedonemoving forward.    

Councilmember Johnson stated thatheistornonthis issuebecause hecanseethepoint
Councilmember Callieswastryingtomakeandherthought process thatiftheCitycannot liveup
toit, whyevenhaveit.  Hestatedthathealsodoesnotliketheopticsofrescinding itbecause



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
DECEMBER 12, 2022
Page 3of7

someone looking fromtheoutsidemaydeemthattomean thattheCitywasnottryingtomake
theeffort tolimittheuseofsystemic pesticides andbeaBeeSafeCitywhichhedoesnotwant
tohappen.  Hestated thathewants the Citytomake progress andgothrough theprocess of
getting IPM’sbestrecommendations andcomeupwithaplantoimplement them.  Hereiterated
thathewastornastowhether therightapproach wouldbe toleavetheexisting resolution in
placeortoadoptanewresolution.  Heexplained thatforeitherapproach, hisunderstanding is
thattheyaretemporary, with theCity moving towards taking thebest information fromthe
consultants thattheyhavehiredandthenimplementing thebestpossible solution.   

Councilmember Callies stated thatsheunderstands theconcerns abouttheoptics, butquestions
howtheycangetaround thesecond point intheresolution thatsays, ‘TheCityshall refrain from
theuseofsystemic pesticides onShorewood Cityproperty, including pesticides fromthe
neonicotinoid family.’  Shestated thatthisisinblackandwhiteandwaswhatgottheCityinto
trouble before.  Shestated thatifthatstaysonthebooks andtheCitymoves intoagradual
implementation, somebody willsaythat isnotallowed, because itiswritten rightthere.  Shestated
thatshethinks, ataminimum, thatlanguage needs tobechanged.  She stated thatshethinks
theCityneeds toseparate outwhattheydofromthelanguage ofthisresolution.  Shestressed
thatshedidnotthinkthislanguage couldbekeptinplaceandtheCitythenjustgoaboutwitha
gradual implementation process.    

Councilmember Gorham statedthathisunderstanding wasthatoneoftheIPMrecommendations
tooktheCityawayfromthemostharmful chemicals inthelessharmful arena, whichhefeelsis
thespiritofthesecond point.    

Councilmember Calliesagreed thatwaswhattherecommendations arebutnoted thatisnot
consistent withwhat theresolution states.  Shestated thatwiththewaytheresolution iswritten,  
peoplecanrightfully saythattheCityisnotrefraining fromtheuseofsystemic pesticides.  She
notedthattherearealsoinconsistencies intheresolution because theCity issupposed tobe
undertaking the ‘bestefforts’ tobecomeaBeeSafeCity.  ShestatedthatshedoesfeeltheCity
shouldworktowards thisbutnotedthatshedidnotthinktheopticswereworthkeeping thisin
place, asitis.  Shestated thatshefeelsitwouldhavebeenbetter fortheCitytohavedonethis
studybefore theresolution wasadopted.    

Mayor Labadie stated thattheword ‘optics’ hascomeupnumerous timesinthisdiscussion.  She
explained thatshereceived morecomplaints thispastspring, summer, andearlyfallabout
buckthorn, weedsalongtheSmithtown sidewalk, andtherecurrent algaeintheManorParkPond
whichhadpreviously beenundercontrol.  Shestated that theCityhadworked ontheManor Pond
project formanyyearsandhaddeemed itsuccessful andnoted thatafterthealumtreatment, she
received alotoffeedback fromtheneighborhood thanking theCityfordoing thisbecause wildlife
andbirdswerecoming back.  Shestated that thispastyear, thepondtookastepbackwards, and
shehasbeenreceivingalotofcomplaints because itwasnotbeingmanaged thewayithadbeen
duetotheresolution language.     

Councilmember Gorham stated thathebelieves thecomplaints camebecause theCitysimply
wasnotmanaging thematallandhadjuststopped usingsystemic pesticides butdidnothavea
PlanBinplace.  Hestated that thereisnoevidence thattellstheCitythatsomething elsewould
haveworkedatManorParkPond.    

MayorLabadie explained thattheCityhadtriedmanyother thingsattheManorParkPondover
manyseasons andnothing workeduntil thealumtreatment.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
DECEMBER 12, 2022
Page 4of7

Councilmember Johnson notedthat theCityhadreliedonexpertise astowhatthebestoptions
were inthatsituation. Hestated thathealsoreceived more lettersofthanks forthealumtreatment
atManorParkPondthanhehasreceived onanyother issueintheCity.    

Councilmember Calliesstated that theathletic associations wantthefields takencareof, but
again, thishastodowithhowtheCitywillgradually implement aplanthatisfeasible economically
andformanpower.  Shestatedthatshethinks thefullCouncil isinagreement thattheywantto
dothesethings andminimize unsafe practices, butshedoesnotfeeltheycanhavetheresolution
leading theCitybythenose.  ShenotedthatiftheCouncilwasgoingtospendmonths tryingto
figureouttheresolution language, shewouldprefer theyjustscrapitandmoveontowhat they
willdotoimplement theplan.  Shestated thattheconsultant willbecoming backandtherewill
alsobepublicmeetings andthentheycandecidewhat isthebestwayforward.  Shereiterated
thatshedidnotfeeltheresolution shouldbedictating upfronthowtheCityshouldgoabout it.    

MayorLabadie stated thattheCouncil haslimited timeonthisitembecause theyneedtodiscuss
theCapital Improvement Planandencouraged themtowrapuptheircomments onthis agenda
item.    

Councilmember Johnson asked whentheCitystarts treating theparks inthespring.   

Public WorksDirector Brownstated thatitisusually around lateAprilorearlyMay.    

Councilmember Johnson askedhowmanymoresteps theCityhadtogowiththeIPMcompanies
before theyreallygetasenseastowhatthebestoptions are.  Henotedthatheunderstood that
thiswasasomewhat openendedrhetorical question, butnotedthatheisleaning towardsonly
modifying thesecondpoint intheoriginal resolution.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thathewouldliketoknowiftherewasanIPMrecommendation
thatcouldmeet thesecondparagraph.  

Councilmember Johnson stated thathebelieves theiranswer tothatwas ‘notatfirst’ butthey
couldgettheregradually.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatshebelieves therepresentative fromGoodNaturesaidthat
theCitywould ‘trytoavoid’.  ShestatedthatshewouldagreewithCouncilmember Johnson that
number twoisthestatement thatwasreally creating problems fortheCityandreiterated thatshe
feels ‘shall refrain from’ isjust toostrong forwhattheCityisabletodo.  Shestatedthatchanging
itto ‘bestefforts torefrain’ isalsonothelpful.    

TheCouncil discussed theoptions formoving forward andwhatapproach mayhaveaconsensus.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatshefeelsthattheCouncil ismaking toobigofadealincalling
thisamonumental decision.  Shestated thatshewould liketoknowhowtheCityisgoingto
implement thisplanandnotjustfocussolelyontheresolution.  Shestated thatshecouldagree
withthesuggestion madebyCouncilmember Johnson tomodify thelanguage innumber twoso
theCitycandosomething anddecidewhichportions oftherecommendations ofIPMcanbe
implemented inawaythatisappropriate fortheCity.     



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
DECEMBER 12, 2022
Page 5of7

MayorLabadie asked iftheCouncil would likethisissuetobeplacedontheregular agenda for
discussion andpotential action.   

Councilmember Callies stated thatshewould liketoseeadecision bemade.   

Councilmember Gorham stated thathefeltthatthecartwasabitbefore thehorse.  Hestated
thatthe Council wants more information about theplanand, iftherearewaystochange the
language andfollowthespiritoftheBeeSaferesolution, oncetheyknowwhichplantheywill
take, thenhefeelsthelanguage shouldbechanged.  Hestated that, tohim, itfeels likethey
wouldbechanging thelanguage foraplanthattheCitydoesnotevenhave inplaceyet.    

Councilmember Calliesstated thatshefelttheCouncil wasjustgoingaround incirclesand
expressed hersupport forplacing thisontheregular agenda soactioncanbetaken.  Shestated
thatifitdoesnotenduppassing, thenitjustdoesnotpass, butreiterated thatshewould liketo
seesomeactionbetaken.    

Councilmember Johnson stated thatmostoftheattention tonighthasbeenplacedonnumber
two, buthewaslookingatnumber four, whichhassimilar language, butdesignates certain areas
tobeunder taken ‘inthefuture’.  Heaskediftheymaybeabletocomeupwithsomelanguage
thatusesnumber fourtodesignate certainareaswhere todaytheCitycommits tonotdoing
anything withsystemic pesticides andthencontinue toworkwiththeIPMconsultants tofigure
outwhattheoverallvisionwillbe.  Hestated thatheenvisions thisthenbeingatemporary
placeholder thattheCitycanactually adhereto.    

There was consensus toplace this ontheagenda as7A, atthe regular City Council meeting
forpotential action.    

Ms. Arndt spoke fromtheaudience andaskedhowmanyhouseholds weretouched bythee-mail
thatwassentouttotheresidents.   

Planning Director Darling notedthatCityClerk/HRDirector Thonewouldhavethatlist, butnoted
thatshecouldgetthatinformation forMs. Arndt.    

3. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP)  

Finance Director Rigdongaveabriefoverview oftheproposed 2023-2032CIPthatwillbeonthe
agenda attheRegular CityCouncil meeting.    

Planning Director Darling statedthatfortheFreeman ParkOverlay Trailsproject mostofthetrails
wouldbereplaced in-kindandafew thatwouldbewidened toeight feet.  Shereviewed afew
areaswhere theyhadasked theParks Commission howtheywould liketoproceed.  Shenoted
thatifalltheoptions weretaken, thisproject wouldcostabout $400,000fromtheCityandbetween
300,000- $380,000forThree RiversParkDistrict.    

MayorLabadie askedifnothing wasgoingtohappen in2024because ofthelargeproposed
expenditure atFreeman Parkin2023.    

Planning Director Darling confirmed thatwasthereasonandexplained thattheCityneeded to
havesomerecovery timeinbetween largeprojects toallowtimetoaccumulate funds.     



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
DECEMBER 12, 2022
Page 6of7

Finance DirectorRigdon notedthattheCitywaslookingatapossible transfer in2023ofabout
200,000tocoversomeofthesecosts.    

Councilmember Gorham askediftheCitywasrequired to construction thetrailsifThree Rivers
ParkDistrict wasdoingthetrailhead, oriftheCitywasjustbeingopportunistic.    

Planning Director Darling explained thattheCityhashadthistrailproject intheCIPforseveral
yearsandwasnotedawhilebackasanareathatneeded improvement because theyare
crocodiled’ andbrokenupintosmallscaleswithcracks.  Shestated thatitisopportune thatthe
ThreeRivers ParkDistrict waswilling torehababigchunkofonetrailsegment andwidened to
theirstandard andaddsomeadditional trailtofunction asatrailhead parkingarea.    

TheCouncil reviewed theproposed Freeman Parkprojectandother itemsincluded intheCIP,  
including: thehockey boardsandplayground equipment atCathcart Park; Badger Parktennis
courtoverlay; andSouthshore Park.  

Councilmember Gorham stated thathewould liketoseetheParkCommission focusonthe
Southshore ParkMaster Planduring 2024.   

Planning Director Darling statedthatcanbedoneaslongasitcanbedoneinternally.  Shenoted
thatshewasalsoplanning ondoingsomemoregrantwriting toseeiftheycangetmorefunding.   

TheCouncil discussed otherCIPplans; discussions aboutotherpossible projects; grant
opportunities; and pickleball courts/tenniscourts.  

PublicWorksDirector Browngaveanoverview ofequipment replacement plans, challenges
within thelabormarket, challenges inbuying vehicles offtheStatecontract, andsafetyofCity
employees.  

MayorLabadie stated thatshefelthaving theBuilding Inspector inaCityvehicle wasimportant.    

Councilmember Johnson askedifthe $204,000wasforanewstreetsweeper andwhether it
wouldsolve theCity’swoesofthesweeper goingoutofcommission.    

PublicWorksDirector Brownstated thatthemoney thathasbeenprogrammed intotheCIPais
foranewstreetsweeper, buttheideaistoputtheexisting sweeper intotheoriginal equipment
manufacturers repairshopsince theCityhasjustfinished thefallsweeping, andrehabilitate it,  
whichwouldnolongerbetimesensitive.  Hestated thataslongasthestreetsweeper isintiptop
shape inthespring, hethinks theCitywillbegoodtogo.            

CityEngineer Buddegaveanoverview ofthestreetsandutilities projects included intheCIP
including:  Strawberry Lane; BirchBluff; Shorewood Landravine; St. Alban’sBayRoadin
partnership withGreenwood; VineRidgeRoadwatermain; Badger Parkwatermain; chipand
crackseals forpavement maintenance.  

Councilmember Calliesaskedwhat ‘reclaim’ meant intheCIPinformation.   

CityEngineer Buddestated thatreclaimiswhentheycomeandgrinduptheentiresurface along
withtheaggregate belowandcreatemorebasematerial.  Heexplained thatthenthey repave
thickeroverthetopofit.  Hereviewed thedifferences between areclaim, millandoverlay, anda



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
DECEMBER 12, 2022
Page 7of7

fullstreet reconstruction.  Hereviewed afewofthemajorprojects thatareslated for2025and
2026suchas:  Eureka RoadNorth; andthepossibility ofadding watermain inconjunction with
trailonMillStreet thattheCounty islooking toadd.  Henotedthattheyarecurrently projecting a
6% inflation rateeveryyearmoving forward whichhasjumped up3% fromthepastyears.  He
notedthatinflation putsalotofstressonthefundingoftheseprojects.    

PublicWorksDirector Brownstated thatstaffhasbeenreally lookingatthenumbers because the
Citydoesnothaveamandatory hook-uppolicy forwatermains.  Hestated thattheyhavebeen
lookingatwhatthehook-uprateshavebeeninthepastandexplained thattheCityneeds tokeep
averycloseeyeonthisbecause itmaymean, inthefuture, thatprojects mayhavetobe
prolonged inorder toletrevenues buildupsotheCitycanpayforthem.  Hestated thathefeels
CityEngineer Buddehasdoneagreat jobintrying tobalance theneedsoftheroadway, keep
installations moving forward withwatermain, andbringing Finance Director Rigdon intothe
equation tomakesure theCitycanpayforit.  Hestated thatiftheycannotpayforit, oneofthose
thingswillneedtogiveandtheproject delayed.  Hestatedthatstaff, rightnow, feelsgoodabout
theplanthatisinfrontoftheCouncil, butcautioned themthatitwillneedtobelooked atevery
yeartomakesureitisworking financially.  

Councilmember Gorham asked abouttheHighway 7Corridor Study.    

CityEngineer Buddestated thatwasaddedintotheCIPasaplaceholder knowing thattherehas
beenstrong interest inmoving something forward.  Hestated thattheydonotknowyetwhatthat
means, butexplained thattherearesomemeetings withMnDOT slated forlaterthisweekthat
shouldhelptheCitybetterunderstand MnDOT’svisionmoving forward.   

Planning Director Darling notedthatfortheFreeman Parktrails, theCityhadvideotaped the
condition ofthetrails lastsummer andthosevideos areallavailable ontheCity’swebsite under
Parks/Trails.    

4. ADJOURN

Johnson moved, Gorham seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Work Session Meeting of
December 12, 2022, at6:48P.M.  Motion passed 4/0.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



2B

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
MUNICIPAL CANVAS BOARD MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2022 7:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE MUNICIPAL CANVAS BOARD MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat7:00P.M.  

A. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Boardmembers Johnson, Labadie, Gorham, andCallies; City
Attorney Shepherd; Interim CityAdministrator Shukle; CityClerk/HRDirector
Thone; Finance Director Rigdon; Planning Director Darling; Director ofPublic
WorksBrown; and, CityEngineer Budde

Absent: None

B. Review Agenda

Johnson moved, Gorham seconded, approving theagenda, aspresented. Motion passed
4/0.   

2. CANVAS 2022 MUNICIPAL ELECTION RESULTS

CityClerk/HRDirector Thoneexplained thatthiswasare-canvas following arecount fromthe
General Election heldonNovember 8, 2022.  Sheexplained thatduetothecloseelection results
foroneoftheCityCouncil seats, arecount washeldbetween Nat Gorham andDustin Maddy.   
Shestated thattheresultswerethatDustin Maddy received 1,610votesandNatGorham
received 1,600votes.    

Councilmember Gorham thanked CityClerk/HRDirector Thoneandtheelection judges fortheir
workontherecount.    

Gorham moved, Labadie seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-125, “AResolution
Accepting Local Results ofthe2022 General Election.”  All infavor, motion passed 4/0.   

3. ADJOURN

Johnson moved, Gorham seconded, Adjourning the Municipal Canvas Board Meeting of
December 12, 2022, at7:04P.M.  Motion passed 4/0.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



2C

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2022 7:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat7:05P.M.  

A. Pledge ofAllegiance
B. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Councilmembers Johnson, Gorham, andCallies; CityAttorney
Shepherd; Interim CityAdministrator Shukle; CityClerk/HRDirector Thone;  
Finance Director Rigdon; Planning Director Darling; Director ofPublic Works
Brown; and, CityEngineer Budde

Absent: None

C. Review Agenda

Callies moved, Gorham seconded, approving theagenda aspresented. All infavor, motion
passed.  

2. CONSENT AGENDA

MayorLabadie reviewed theitemsontheConsent Agenda.   

Johnson moved, Gorham seconded, Approving theMotions Contained ontheConsent
Agenda and Adopting theResolutions Therein.    

A. City Council Work Session Minutes ofNovember 28, 2022

B. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes ofNovember 28, 2022

C. Approval of theVerified Claims List

D. Approve 2023 City Council Meeting Schedule, Adopting RESOLUTION NO.  
22-126, “AResolution Setting the2023 Regular City Council Meeting
Schedule for theCity ofShorewood.”   

E. Approve Appointments ofMatthew Morreim asPublic Works Director

F. Accept Donation from Lucky’sStation forArctic Fever Event, Adopting
RESOLUTION NO. 22-127, “AResolution Accepting Donations tothe City of
Shorewood 2023 Arctic Fever Event.”  

G. Approve Programmatic Stormwater Agreement with Minnehaha Creek
Watershed District, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-128, “AResolution to



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
DECEMBER 12, 2022
Page 2of7

Approve Programmatic Maintenance Agreement with Minnehaha Creek
Watershed District.”  

H. Approve Temporary Liquor License forArctic Fever Event, Adopting
RESOLUTION NO. 22-129, “ AResolution Approving aTemporary On-Sale
Liquor License forExcelsior Brewing inConjunction with Arctic Fever,”  

I. Approve City Amendments toMS4, Adopting Ordinance 596, 597 and
RESOLUTION 22-130  “ AResolution Approving Summary Publication of
Ordinance 596 Regarding City Code Ordinance Amendments Related toIllicit
Discharge into Stormwater System.”; and RESOLUTION NO. 22-131, “A
Resolution Approving Summary Publication ofOrdinance 597 Regarding
City Code Ordinance Amendments Related toIllicit Discharge into
Stormwater System.”  

J. Approve Bolton & Menk Contract Renewal

K. Approve Campbell Knutson Civil Legal Services Contractor Renewal

L. Approve Campbell Knutson Criminal Prosecution Services Renewal

All infavor, motion passed.   

MayorLabadie expressed appreciation forthedonation madebyLucky’sfortheupcoming Arctic
Feverevent.    

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR

4. TRUTH INTAXATION PUBLIC MEETING

A. Adopt 2023 Property TaxLevy and General Fund Budget

Finance Director Rigdon gaveabriefpresentation ontheproposed 2023Property TaxLevyand
General FundBudget.  Henotedthatin2021 theCityusedreserves inordertobalance the
General Fundrevenues andexpenses, butexplained thatwasnotsomething that theCitywanted
tocontinue todobecause itwasnotthebestbudgeting tactic.  Heexplained thatin2023, theCity
isstructurally balanced withtherevenues equal toexpenditures.  Henotedthatthetimefor
residents todiscuss theirproperty valuations wasthrough theBoardofReview inthespring.  He
stated thattheCityneeds tocertify theirProperty TaxLevybyDecember 28, 2022.  Hegavean
overview ofvarious scenarios fortheproperty taxesbasedondifferent valuation increases.  He
reviewed budget information fortheShorewood Community andEventCenter andEnterprise
Funds.  Hestated thattheCapital Improvement Planisupdated onanannual basisandgavea
briefoverview oftheproposed projects for2023.    

MayorLabadie opened thisitemforpubliccomment at7:22p.m.  

George Greenfield, 24715Yellowstone Trail, stated thateverycitizenshould takepleasure in
paying theirtaxesbecause itindicates membership inthecommunity.  Heexplained thathefelt
thiswasasentiment thatshouldbepreserved andcultivated, butitisundermined when
irrationality invades thetaxation system.  Hestatedthathefeelsthattherewassomeirrationality



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
DECEMBER 12, 2022
Page 3of7

intheCityandgavetheexampleoftheTaxIncrement Financing (TIF) District andShorewood
Landings.  Hegaveanestimate ofmuch moneytheCitywill losebecause oftheTIFandshared
histhoughts onthings thatmakethissituation evenmoreegregious.   

Therebeingnoadditional comments, MayorLabadie closed thepubliccomment portionofthe
meeting at7:29p.m.  

Councilmember Calliesnoted thattheCouncil hadalready heldanumberofmeetings onthis
information.    

Callies moved, Johnson seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-132, “AResolution
Adopting the2023 General Fund Operating Budget and Approving theProperty Tax Levy
Collectible in2023.”  All infavor, motion passed.   

Callies moved, Johnson seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-133, “AResolution
Adopting the2023 Shorewood Community andEvent Center Budget and 2023 Enterprise
Fund Budgets.”  All infavor, motion passed.   

Johnson moved, Gorham seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-134, “AResolution
Adopting the2023-2032 Capital Improvement Plan and 2023 Capital Project Fund
Budgets.” All infavor, motion passed.   

5. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

A. Employee Service Awards

Interim CityAdministrator Shukle explained thattheCity enthusiastically andhistorically
recognizes employees havewhoreached certain milestones intheiremployment withtheCity.   
Heacknowledged:  ChrisHeitz, Public WorksLeadSupervisor; MarieDarling, Planning Director;  
andSandie Thone, CityClerk/HRDirector whohaveallbeenwiththeCityforfiveyears.     

MayorLabadie sharedanexample ofaninstance onaSaturday thatPublicWorksLead
Supervisor HeitzandtwootherPublicWorksemployees cameouttoaneighborhood thathada
flooding streetandspenthours takingcareoftheproblems andpumping water fromthestreet.   
Shestated thatanytime shehasaquestion, Planning Director Darling, goesaboveandbeyond
toensure thatsheunderstands thesituation andisalways willing totaketimetoexplain things to
theCouncil andputthings intotermsthattheycanunderstand.  Shestated thatshealso
frequently stays lateandinthepasthasattended alltheParkCommission aswellasthePlanning
Commission meetings.  Shenoted thatCityClerkThone hasbeenabletoimplement alotof
thingswithin theCity thatpriortoheremployment didnotexist.  Sheexplained that shefeels
manyofthemhavemadeahuge impactonthemoraleoftheCitystaff.      

TheCouncil thanked theemployees fortheirservice totheCity.    

B. Recognition ofService:  
Larry Brown, Director ofPublic Works
Nat Gorham, City Council

Interim CityAdministrator Shuklestated thatPublicWorksDirector BrownhasbeenwiththeCity
forovertwenty-sevenyears.  Hestatedthathecameinwhenthisposition reallydidnotexistand



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
DECEMBER 12, 2022
Page 4of7

wasabletodevelop improvements inthedepartment andhasalsoledacrewofverygood
employees.  Hestated thatonethingthattheCitywillmissistheamountofinstitutional memory
thathehasandexpressed thedesire thathebewilling tocorrespond withhissuccessor when
necessary.  Hestated thatatthetimePublic WorksDirector Brownwashired, hewasworking for
theCityofMound.  Heexplained thathewasimpressed withPublicWorksDirector Browntwenty- 
sevenyearsagoandhasremained impressed inhistimeworking withhimthispastyear.    

PublicWorksDirectorBrownstated thatithasbeenatreatworking fortheCityforthelasttwenty- 
sevenyears.  Hestated thathehasseenanumber ofCouncils andanumberofCity
Administrators inhistimewiththeCity.  Henotedthathehashadmany opportunities and
reiterated thatithasbeenapleasure serving theCouncil andtheresidents oftheCity.    

Therewasaroundofapplause forPublicWorks Director Brown.   

Mayor Labadie stated thatshehasalotofnicknames forvariousstaffmembers andPublicWorks
Director Brown’snickname isLLB, ‘Legendary LarryBrown’.  Shestated thatshewillmisshim
andnotedthathislastdaywiththeCitywillbeanemotional dayforher.  Shestated thathis
institutional knowledge willnotbegoingawaybecause sheplanstocallhimandbughimwith
questions.  ShenotedthatCouncilmember Gorham’stermontheCouncil willalsobeending
soon.  Shestated thatsheappreciated hisstepping uptofillherCouncil seataftershewaselected
Mayor.  Sheexplained thattherewerethirteen applicants thatapplied forthepositionandhewas
thecandidate theCouncil hadselected tofinishoutherterm.  Shestated thattheCouncil was
veryconfident intheirselection andhistimeonCouncil hasproven that thisconfidence wasnot
unwarranted.    

Councilmember Gorham thanked theCouncil forgivinghimthisopportunity andnotedthatithad
adramatic twoyears.  Hestated thathedidnotrealizeallthetoughdecisions andconversations
thathewouldbepartofbyserving ontheCouncil.  Heexpressed hisdesire that thenextfew
yearswouldbesmooth sailing fortheCouncil andwished incoming Councilmembers Maddyand
Sanschagrin thebestintheirnewpositions.     

Councilmember Johnson pointed outthatCouncilmember Gorham alsoservedonthePlanning
Commission foryearsandexpressed hishopethathemayconsider throwing hishatbackinto
serve inthatcapacity again.    

Councilmember Gorham thanked theCouncil, MayorLabadie andstaff foralltheirassistance and
guidance duringhistimeontheCouncil.    

Therewasaroundofapplause forCouncilmember Gorham.    

MayorLabadie notedthatthereweremany timesthatthisCouncildidnotagreewitheachother,  
butstated thatCouncilmember Gorham wasalways respectful whenexpressing hisopinion
regardless ofwhether heagreedornot.    

6. PLANNING

A. Presentation byCommissioner Huskins onDecember 6, 2022 Planning
Commission Meeting



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
DECEMBER 12, 2022
Page 5of7

Commissioner Huskins gaveanoverview ofthediscussion andrecommendations fromthe
December 6, 2022Planning Commission meeting.   

7. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS

A. Review Reaffirmation ofBee Safe Resolution

Planning Director Darling stated thattheCouncil hadreviewed theBeeSafeResolution attheir
WorkSession earlier thisevening.  Shestated thattheyreviewed therevised resolution and
believes thattherewasconsensus attheWorkSession tomakeafewchanges tothelanguage.   
Shenoted thatCityAttorney Shepherd wasabletoquickly makesomechanges tothelanguage
andexplained thatcopiesofthoserevisions havebeenplacedinfrontoftheCouncil andwere
available forreviewonthetable justoutside thechambers.   

CityAttorney Shepherd gaveanoverview oftheconcerns theCouncil hadexpressed about the
previous draftoftheresolution andthedesiretoreviseportions oftheexisting resolution.      

Councilmember Calliesstated thatshethinkstherevisedchanges totheresolution provide
workable solutions andcanbeusedastheCitymoves forward intothemainworkinhowto
implement therecommendations fromtheIPMInstitute.  Shestatedthatsheisinfavorofthese
changes andnotedthatshefeelstheyarestatedmoreclearly thattheprevious draft.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thathedidnotthinkagradual reduction wasinthespiritofbeing
a Bee-SafeCity.  Hereferenced thee-mail theCityreceived fromJudyChucker andexplained
thatthephrasehehasinthefrontofhismindisthatyou ‘eitherdoitoryoudonotdoit’.  He
stated thathethinks theCityneeds tounderstand whattheyaredoing firstbecause hedoesnot
thinktheycanreallyknowiftheyaregoing todoagradual reduction ornot.  Hestated thathe
feelstheyarelettinganideaofwhattheythinktheIPMstrategy willbetoleadtheCouncil toa
resolution.  Hestated thathethinks that thereshouldbeahigherbarsetthanjustagradual
reduction andaskediftheCouncil wasconcerned aboutaspecific liabilityoriftherewasafear
ofbeingsued.   

Councilmember Callies stated thatshedidnotthinktheissuewasrelated toliability, butnoted
thatthereisalotofpushbackorupsetbythepubliciftheCitydoesnotcomply withtheresolution.   
Shestated thatthisisstatingapolicyandiftheCityisgoingtohavearesolution, shefeelsthat
theyshould dosomething that isstated inawaythattheCity isabletoundertake that.  She
explained thatshefeltthemostrecentproposed change doesabetter jobofthatthattheprevious
resolution.  Shestated thatshewoulddisagree thattheCityneeds tohavetheplanfirstbecause
thecurrent resolution dictated everysingle thingtheCitydidintermsofparks, Cityproperty
management, anduseofpesticides.   

Councilmember Gorham notedthathewasnotsureifthegradual reduction planwouldactually
betheplan.  Henotedthatthemostrecent language drafthadnotbeenreviewed byresidents
because ithaskindofjustbeenshuffled inpriortothemeeting, whichhedoesnotlike.    

Mayor Labadie stated thattheWorkSession andthismeeting werepublic meetings andresidents
hadnotbeenaskedtoleave.  Shenotedthatsheagreed withCouncilmember Callies thatshe
didnotthinktheCouncil wasdoingthisoutoffear.  Shestated thatshehadsharedattheWork
Session meeting thatshehadreceivedalotofcallsthispastyearaboutbuckthorn, weeds, and



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
DECEMBER 12, 2022
Page 6of7

thedeterioration ofthe ManorParkPond.  Shestatedthatshethinkstaking thisactionwouldbe
agoodstep.    

Councilmember Gorham askedwhenthenextmeeting withIPMwouldbeheld.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatthemeeting wasnotyetscheduled.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatin2014whentheoriginal resolution waspassed, therewas
notahugepublichearing orinput fromthepublicsurrounding theadoptionoftheresolution.  She
stated thatshethinks theitemsthatneedadditional public inputwouldberelated tothespecific
portions ofimplementation thattheCitywillundertake, aswellastheactualaspects ofthework.   
Shestatedshefelttheplanneeded toevolvefromtheresolution andnottheotherwayaround.      

Councilmember Johnson stated thatheunderstood whereCouncilmember Gorham wascoming
from, but, inhisopinion, ashereads theresolution initsentirety, thereare ‘whereas’ statements
atthetopofthepagethattalkabouttheCity’scommitment whichshows thedirection theCity
wants togo.  Hestated thathefeelsmaking theserevisions arebetter thanrescinding theoriginal
resolution andhewouldbeinfavoroftherevised language.   

Callies moved, Johnson seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-135, “AResolution
Reaffirming theCity’sCommitment to “Bee-Safe” Management Practices”, asrevised and
provided totheCouncil following the Work Session meeting.  Onavote of3-1 (Gorham
opposed), motion passed.  

8. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS

A. Staff

PublicWorksDirector Brownstated thatthereisamajor stormeventcoming andencouraged
everyone tostayawareandbecareful.    

MayorLabadie noted thatshehadgottenalotofpositive feedback regarding PublicWorks related
tosnowremovalbutnotedthatshehasgottenalotofkickback regarding thedirtonSmithtown
Road.    

Councilmember Johnson agreed andstated thathehadalsoreceived quiteafewcomplaints
about thedirtonSmithtown Road.    

MayorLabadie notedthatshehadforwarded thecomplaints toPublicWorksDirector Brownand
CityEngineer Buddeandexplained thattheyseemtohavebeenresolved.    

CityEngineer Buddeexplained thatSmithtown Roaddidgetpretty messandsloppy forportion
ofthelastweekandhehadcommunicated withthecontractor thattheyneedtochange theirbest
management practices sosediment isnottracking outthewayithadbeen.  Henotedthatheis
stillawaiting aresponse fromthemastotheirplanforcorrecting andaddressing thissituation.   
Hestated thatstaffhasameeting setupwithMnDOT laterthisweektodiscuss theHighway 7
corridor andthenextstepsmoving forward.   Hethanked PublicWorksDirector Brownforhis
workintheCityandstated that ithadbeenapleasure working withhimoverthepastthreeyears.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
DECEMBER 12, 2022
Page 7of7

Public WorksDirector Brownstated thatregarding Smithtown Road,  heandCityEngineer Budde
discussed thesituation.  Heexplained thatwhenheheardwhatwashappening, CityEngineer
Buddehadpromptly issueda ‘stopwork’ order forthemwhichgottheirattention andnoted that
theyhadbeenencouraged tocomeupwithadifferent plan.    

Planning Director Darling stated thattheParksCommissioner MattGallivan hasresigned along
withCommissioners Schmid andHeinz, so, theCityisnolongerabletohaveaquorum until those
positions havebeen filled.  Sheencouraged residents toconsider volunteering forthethreeseats
openontheParksCommission orthetwoopenonthePlanning Commission.    

B. Mayor and City Council

Councilmember Gorham statedthatthecommunities localchocolate shop, TruffleHill, was
vandalized andtheirentire inventory wasruined.  Hestated thattheyareopenagainand
encouraged anyone whomayneedchocolate fortheholidays tocontact them.  

Amanfromtheaudience shared information aboutacrowd-funding efforton-linethatwasable
toraiseover $15,000.    

Councilmember Johnson notedthatwhiletheyarebackopen, hedidnotthinkthattheywere
takingorderson-line.  Hestated thathealsowanted tothankMayorLabadie forthecountless
interviews thatshehasgivenonHighway 7safetyandnotedthathefeltthattheywerevery
professionally done.  Hestated thatheishopeful thatthiswillhelpbringsomechanges tothe
Highway 7corridor morequickly.    

MayorLabadie statedthatsomeofthoseinterviews occurred asaresultofresidents reaching
outtothenewsagencies whothencontacted hertomakeastatement onbehalfoftheCity.  She
thanked theresidents whotookthetimetocontact thoseagencies about thesafetyofHighway 7
andassured theresidents thatshewouldnotbegivinguponthisissue.  Sheattended the
Regional Council ofMayors meeting earlier todaywhere sheencouraged themtohavetopics and
speakers in2023, suchasinfrastructure, thatweregeared moretowards smaller cities.    

9. ADJOURN

Johnson moved, Labadie seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Regular Meeting of
December 12, 2022, at8:05P.M. All infavor, motion passed.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk







































































2E

MEETING
TYPE

Regular
MeetingCityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:   CityMasterFeeScheduleAnnualReview
Meeting Date: Monday, January 9, 2022
Prepared by:  Sandie Thone, CityClerk/HRDirector
Reviewed by:  MarkNevinski, CityAdministrator

JoeRigdon, Finance Director
Attachments:    
Resolution23-001
Proposed2023CityMasterFeeSchedule

PolicyConsideration: Pursuant toMNStateLawmunicipalities shallsetforthfeestobe
reimbursed foradministrative costsandexpenses associated withissuing permits,  
licenses andproviding othercityservices andamenities.  Citiesshould consider three
things whensetting fees: 1) Citiesshould notviewthefeesasasignificant source of
revenue, rather feesmustapproximate thedirect andindirect costsassociated with
issuing thelicense, permitorservice andwithpolicing, regulating oradministering the
service orlicensed activities; 2) Thefeeamount should sufficiently reimburse thecityfor
alloftheexpenses related tothelicense regulations orproviding theservice butshould
notcoverotherunrelated expenses; 3) Feesshould besetbased onthecity’sparticular
situation andnotbased solelyonwhatothercitieshavefound reasonable.    

Background:  Theattached proposed 2023CityMaster FeeSchedule incorporates the
proposed feeschedule amendments asrecommended bystaffwhohave reviewed their
respective departmental feestoapproximate thedirectandindirect costsassociated with
theservices provided.    

Adiscussion ofnewandincreased feesisasfollows.     

Stormwater Fees: AMS4IllicitDischarge Appeal feeof $200isbeing proposed,  
referencing CityCodesection 907.11 (Page9ofFeeSchedule) toallowforanappeal
process asitrelates toMS4IllicitDischarge.    

Building Permit Fees: Feeminimums forPlumbing andMechanical flatfeepermits were
nolonger covering thecosttoissue thosepermits orprovide theinspections.  These
fees (Page13ofCityFeeSchedule) were increased from $35to $60or2for $100.    

UtilityRates: Ordinance 593, whichwaspassed bythecitycouncil inSeptember ofthis
year, allows forWater, Sanitary Sewer, andStormwater Management Utility Rate
increases (Pages8 & 9ofFeeSchedule) which become effective January 2023andare
incorporated intotheCity’sMasterFeeSchedule.     

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



Shorewood Community & EventCenter Fees: Community Center Fees (Pages17 & 18
ofCityFeeSchedule) wereupdated toinclude areduction inthevarious ratesforrooms
basedontimeanddayandeliminated the4-hourblockandreplaced themwithbroader
timewindows forrentals andadded fulldayrates forFridays andSaturdays forthe
banquet room.  Partial dayrentals were limited to9AM-1PMor4pm-12Midnight rental
windows.  These changes weremadetoincrease thecapacity forweekend rentals and
allowtimetocleanandresetbetween rentalgroups.  A5-hourtimeblockwasadded for
theconference roomontheweekends asitcanbeusedforbridal room, event
headquarters, etc. forrenters ofthebanquet hall.  Thefeesfortablelinenswere
increased, compostable itemswereremoved, andcoffee options reflect what is
currently available atthecenter.    

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations: Thecityfeescover thecostofproviding the
services asdelineated intheCityMaster FeeSchedule.    

Recommendation/ActionRequested:   

Staffrespectfully recommends thecitycouncil approve Resolution 23-001 adopting the
2023 Master FeeSchedule asproposed ormaketheappropriate changes asdeemed
appropriate.    Motion, secondandsimplemajorityvoterequired.    

ConnectiontoVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents qualitypublic
services, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsound financial
management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.       



CITY OF SHOREWOOD
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN, STATE OF MINNESOTA

RESOLUTION 23-001
2023 CITY MASTER FEE SCHEDULE

TheCityofShorewood anditsactivities asamunicipality requires setting forthfeesandcharges
toreimburse thecityforadministrative andotherexpenses related totheissuingofpermits,  
licenses andotherservices; andmustmaintain arelevant schedule offeesandregularly audit
theireffectiveness.    

TheCityofShorewood hasestablished feesforlicensing, permits, programs, andservices that
includebutarenotlimited tobuilding, zoning, planning, business, community center, animal,  
parkandrecreation, rentals, solicitors, fireprevention, utility, franchise, administrative citations,  
andothermiscellaneous feesthatfurther thehealth, safetyandwelfareofthecommunity at
large.  Allfeesandcharges shallbefixedanddetermined bythecouncilandsetforth inthe
master feeschedule whichwillbeadopted byresolution anduniformly enforced.  Allfeeshave
beenreviewed andaudited fortheireffectiveness andthefollowing feeshavebeenamended as
follows:  

Stormwater Fees: AMS4IllicitDischarge Appeal feeof $200isbeing proposed, referencing
CityCodesection 907.11 (Page9ofCityFeeSchedule) toallowforanappeal process asit
relates toMS4IllicitDischarge.    

Building PermitFees: Feeminimums forPlumbing andMechanical flatfeepermitswereno
longercovering thecosttoissuethosepermits orprovide theinspections.  These fees (Page13
ofCityFeeSchedule) were increased from $35to $60or2for $100.    

UtilityRates: Ordinance 593, which waspassed bythecitycouncil inSeptember ofthisyear,  
allows forWater, Sanitary Sewer, andStormwater Management Utility Rate increases (Pages8

9ofFeeSchedule) whichbecome effective January 2023andareincorporated intotheCity’s
Master FeeSchedule.     

Shorewood Community & EventCenter Fees: Community CenterFees (Pages17 & 18ofthe
CityFeeSchedule) wereupdated toincludeareduction inthevarious ratesforroomsbasedon
timeanddayandeliminated the4-hourblockandreplaced themwithbroader timewindows for
rentalsandadded fulldayratesforFridays andSaturdays forthebanquet room.  Partialday
rentals werelimited to9AM-1PMor4pm-12Midnight rentalwindows.  Thesechanges were
madetoincrease thecapacity forweekend rentalsandallowtimetocleanandresetbetween
rentalgroups.  A5-hourtimeblockwasadded fortheconference roomontheweekends asit
canbeusedforbridal room, eventheadquarters, etc. forrentersofthebanquet hall.  Thefees
fortable linenswereincreased, compostable itemswereremoved, andcoffeeoptions reflect
what iscurrently available atthecenter.    

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood the2023
CityMasterFeeSchedule fortheCityofShorewood isadopted.  ADOPTED BYTHE CITY
COUNCIL oftheCityofShorewood this9thdayofJanuary 2023.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



5755CountryClubRoad * Shorewood, MN * 55331
952.960.7900/www.ci.shorewood.mn.us

Cityof
Shorewood

MASTERFEESCHEDULE



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

Introduction

InMayof2017theShorewood CityCouncilapproved anamendment toChapter1300:  
MunicipalFeesoftheShorewood CityCoderemoving theactualfeesfromtheCode,  
withtheexceptionofLandUseFees, andreplacing itwithreferencing theMasterFee
Schedule whichwillestablish feesbyCouncil resolution.  LandUseFeesarerequired
pursuant toMNStatestatutes tobeamendedandestablished byordinance in
communities thatcollect inexcessof $5,000insaidfeesonanannualbasis.  Previous
andfutureresolutions andordinances amendingorestablishing newfeeswillbe
collated intotheMasterFeeScheduleasnecessary andprudent.  Theseupdatesareset
forthbyCouncil resolution (andordinance inthecaseoflandusefees) and
incorporated intotheMasterFeeSchedule uponadoptionoftheproposedestablished
fees.  Thisprovidesacost-effective andexpedient processforreviewing feesfor
relevanceandproviding annualupdatestothescheduleofcityfeesandauser-friendly
document forpublicuse.    

AcopyoftheMasterFeeSchedule isavailableonthecitywebsiteat
www.ci.shorewood.mn.usoratcityofficeslocatedat5755CountryClubRoadin
Shorewood, MN55331.  Toobtainanelectronic copypleaseemail
cityofshorewood@gmail.com.    



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

TABLEOFCONTENTS

SECTIONI: LicenseandPermitServiceFees 4-6

SECTIONII: LiquorLicenseFeesandCharges 7

SECTIONIII: UtilityRates; Sewer, Water, Stormwater, Recycling 8-9

SECTIONIV: Miscellaneous FeesandCharges 10-11

SECTIONV: ParkandRecreation Fees 12

SECTIONVI: BuildingandRightofWayFees 13-14

SECTIONVII: ZoningandLandUseFees (Ordinance)     15-16

SECTIONVIII: Shorewood Community andEventCenter 17-18



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

LICENSE, PERMIT, SERVICE CHARGES ANDMISCELLANEOUS FEES

TypeofCharge/Fee CityCode Charge/Fee
Reference

I.  License and Permit Service Fees

Administrative Enforcement 104.03 ClassAOffenses:                             $300
Violations ofPublicHealth
Regulations
Chapters 501-503, except thoseviolations

whicharealsoZoning CodeViolations)  

ClassBOffenses:                 $ 300
Violations ofRentalHousing
Regulations (Chapter 1004)  

Subsequent ClassBViolations         $1,000

ClassCOffenses:                 $ 300
Violations ofBuilding Regulations
Chapters 1001-1003and1005)  

Violations ofWetland Regulations
Chapter 1102)  

Violations ofTreePreservation
Regulations (Chapter 1103)  
Violations ofZoning Regulations
Chapter 1201)  

Subsequent ClassA & CViolations:  
2ndcitation within24months:  
25% increase overscheduled civilpenalty

3rdcitation within24months:  
50% increase overscheduled civilpenalty

4thcitation within24months:  
100% increase overscheduled civilpenalty

Administrative Enforcement 104.03 $ 200
Appeal

Administrative Non-Payment Fee 104.03Subd. 5 $ 100



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

LICENSE, PERMIT, SERVICE CHARGES ANDMISCELLANEOUS FEES

TypeofCharge/Fee CityCode Charge/Fee
Reference

I.  License and Permit Service Fees

Adultuselicense 309
Investigative fee $ 500
Adultusefacility license $ 1,675 + $50/videoboothorstall

Animal impound fees 701.08.4 $ 25firstoffense ofyear, $50thereafter
Dailyboarding fee $ 25
Additional services when $ 95inoculation
required $ 35bath

Commercial lawnfertilizer 310.03.2d $ 30
application license (annual)  
Dock - Boatdocksandboat 304.05 $ 35
storage facility license
Dock - Multiple dockfacility 1201.24, Subd.  

2perslip/peryear
license 10
Doglicenses, peranimal 701.03.2 $ 10/$5license latefee
Domestic partnership registry 110.06 $ 25

Registration $ 25
Amendment $ 25
Termination certificate, $ 2
certified

Farmandotheranimals 704.09 $ 50

Firealarmpermits 601.06.1 $ 2002ndfalsealarmandthereafter

Fire (recreational firepermit) 501.03 Nocharge
Fireworks dealer license/permit  $ 100persite/peryear

Gambling permit - exempt 301.09.3 $ 25

Gambling premises permit - new 301.08.4 $ 100
investigation fee

Horse permit 702.04 $ 25

Kennel license 701.04.2 $ 25/initial license
10/renewal license

Policealarmpermits 601.06.1 $ 1003rdfalsealarmandthereafter



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

System contractor license  $ 1,000bond

Therapeutic massage annual  $ 100
business license

Tobacco retailer license 302 $ 250/premise
Tobacco administrative fines:    

Tobacco licensees inviolation $ 75/firstoffense
200/second offense in24-monthperiod
250/thereafter within24-monthperiod

Individuals intobacco violation $ 50peroffense



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

II.  Liquor License Fees andLiquor Violation Fines

TypeofCharge/Fee CityCode Charge/Fee
Reference

Intoxicating liquor license - on-sale 401.06.1 $ 7,500

Winelicense - on-sale 401.06.1 $ 1,000

Intoxicating liquor - off-sale 401.06.1 $ 310

Liquorspecial clublicense 401.06.1 $ 250

Special Sunday license 401.06.1 $ 200

3.2% malt/liquor license - on-sale 401.06.2 $ 300

3.2% malt liquor license - off-sale 401.06.2 $ 50

3.2% malt liquororintoxicating liquor
Temporary license 401.06.2 $ 25

Extended Sales (2:00a.m.) liquor license
inaddition toState required fee) forOn-   

SaleIntoxicating andMaltLiquor 401.05 $ 100
Establishments
Liquor license investigation fee -New
license 401.06.1 $ 500

Liquor license investigation fee - Renewal 401.06.1 $ 250
withchange inmanagers/owners/like

40121 $ 500/firstoffense

1,000/second offense in24months

1,500/thirdoffense in24months

2,000/fourthoffense in24months



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

III.  Utility Rates

Sewer
TypeofCharge/Fee CityCode Charge/Fee

Reference

Sewerconnection permit 904.07.1 $ 150

Sanitary SewerService 904.15.1a
Residential: Ord. 593
SewerOnlyperquarter   $ 112.36
LowIncome Sewerperquarter  $ 74.90
Commercial: Ord. 593
BaseCharge $ 12.70
1-28,500gallonsperquarter  $ 112.36
1,000gallons inexcessof28,500gallons $ 2.92
perquarter

Sanitary sewersurcharge 904.09.5 $ 100/month

Localseweravailability charge 904.18.3 $ 1,200

Water
TypeofCharge/Fee CityCode Charge/Fee

Reference

Waterconnection permit 903.03.1a

Inside $ 60

Outside $ 60
Watering restriction violation 903.12 $ 50firstviolation

25 increase eachsucceeding
violation
e.g. 2ndviolation $75, 3rdviolation
100, andthelike)  

Watermeter 903.04.1

5/8"x3/4"meterw/swivels Costplus10%  

5/8" x3/4" copperhorn Costplus10%  

1" meter includes swivel Costplus10%  

1" copperhorn Costplus10%  

1" pressure-reducing valve Costplus10%  



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

11/2" meter (withflanges)  Costplus10%  

2" meter (withflanges)  Costplus10%  

11/2" pressure-reducing valve Costplus10%  

2" pressure-reducing valve Costplus10%  

Meter test 903.08.4 $ 80

903.09.1aWaterservice
Ord. 593

st15,000gallons 26.86

Per1,000gallons inexcessof5,000and
4.54upto50,000gallons

Per1,000gallons inexcessof50,000 6.52
gallons perquarter

Waterservice - lowincome perquarter 903.09.1a (1) $ 23.06minimum

Ord. 593

Water turn-onandshut-offfee 903.04 $ 50
Waterconnection fee 903.03.3 $ 10,000
Single-family residential Seechart/formula in903.04subd3a
Multi-family residential, Commercial Seechart/formula in903.04subd3a
Schools, churches, government andother
non-residential

Stormwater Management

TypeofCharge/Fee CityCode Charge/Fee
Reference

Stormwater Management Utility 905.03
Ord.593

BasicSystem Rate $ 37.29
Lotslessthan10,000s/fperquarter $ 26.11
Lots10,000-50,000s/fperquarter $ 37.29
Lots50,000pluss/fperquarter $ 48.54

907.11
MS4IllicitDischarge Appeal $ 200.00

Recycling

TypeofCharge/Fee CityCode Charge/Fee

Residential recycling fee  $ 14/quarter/household



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

IV.  Miscellaneous Fees and Charges

TypeofCharge/Fee CityCode Charge/Fee
Reference

Special assessment search $ 25

Mailed minutes (nonresident) $ 75.00annual
25/page/individual

Mailedagendas  $ 35annual
25/page/individual

Copies (B&W)  $. 25/page/singleside8.5x11@
50/page/singleside > 8.5x11
3/page/singleside > 11x17

Colorcopies 1/page/singleside
2/page/singleside > 8.5x11
4/page/singleside > 11x17

Mailing labels (Allcityresidents)  $ 65allresidents onmailing labels

Aerial topography: Mylarcopy  $ 16/acreplus $5/mylar
Electronic $ 50/megabyte ofdata
CityCodebook:  $ 75
CDRom $ 25
Updates $ 25/year
CityZoning Code $. 25perpageplusbinding costs

Assessment Certification Fee 903.10.3(e) $ 50

Comprehensive Plan (softbound color Costofproduction
copy)  
CitySubdivision Ordinance   (softbound  $. 25perpageplusbinding costs
copy)   
Election Candidate filingfee  $ 2

Transient business, 308.08
peddling/soliciting $ 50/applicant

Sandbarrel/sandcharge  $ 40barrelandsand/$30sandonly

RentalHousing Licenses (3-yearperiod)     
Appeal filingfee 100
License application fee, perrental

dwelling inbuilding withonetofiveunits
75includes twoinspections perunit) 1004.06.6



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

License application fee, perrental 1004.03(3) $ 400plus $10perrentalunitupto
750maximumdwelling inbuilding withsixormorerental ( Res.17-089)  

units (includes uptotwoinspections per
unit)   

Additional inspections asnecessary 1004.03(3)  75/inspection
Res.17-089)  

Rental license application feeforbuildings 1004.03(3)  
withsix (6) ormoreunitsconstructed ( Res.20-022)  
withinoneyearfromdateofapplication
shallbebaselicense feeexcluding $10per1004.03(3)  
rentalunitfee.   ( Res.17-089)  

TreePreservation Providing funds for 1103 $ 400pertree
planting treesonCityProperty
Wetland BufferMonuments 1102.06 $ 44permarker + tax

Subd.2

Return checkfee  $ 25

Plansandspecifications, paper copy  $ 35

Plansandspecifications, CDcopy  $ 25

Franchise Fees: These monthly feesare Ordinance 559
collected bytherespective utilityand and560
remitted totheCityonaquarterly basis. Adopted

6/25/2018
Natural GasFranchise Fee:   

4.00Residential
4.00Com-A
4.00SVDF-A
4.00SVDF-B
4.00LG (DualFuelorFirm)  
10.00Com/Ind-B
25.00Com/Ind-C

Electric Franchise Fee:  
4.00Residential
8.00SmallC & INon-Demand
10.00SmallC & IDemand
25.00LargeC & I



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

V.  Park and Recreation

TypeofCharge/Fee CityCode Charge/Fee
Reference

902.06.3Parkandrecreation usefees

Organized sports participant  $ 10/perparticipant, persport, per
Skating rinks (perrink) season

Lights $ 15/hour

Tournaments, perrink $ 30/dayplusattendant salary
505.02.4

Special Event Registration andPermit $ 50/dayforeventsonpublic
property with75ormore
attendees/participants.  

Community Gardens Resident & Non-Resident Fees
30/Resident
45/Non-Resident

Soccer/Football/Baseball/SoftballFields
perfield)  

125/flatfee
Damage deposit, allfields

50/houror $210/day
Football Field, unlighted

30/hour
Lights

50/day
Diamond field (baseball)  

150/day
Entiresoccerarea, unlighted

5/court/hour
Tennis Courts

Resident & Non-Resident FeesPicnicPavilions

Manor/Freeman/Silverwood 25 + tax /Resident
50 + tax/Non-Resident

EddyStation/BadgerPark 50 + tax /Resident
75 + tax/Non-Resident



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

VI.  Building and Right ofWay Fees

Note:  Basefeesarenon-refundable.  Escrow deposits aretocoverconsulting engineer andattorney
expenses.  Applicants areinformed thatanycityexpenses notcovered bythesefeeswillbebilledto
them.  Unused escrow feeswillbereturned toapplicant uponwritten request.  

Building permit 1001.03 1997U.B.C. SECTION 107
1997U.B.C. TABLE1-AAND
STATE RULE1300.0160

Reinspection fee ( Res. 20-022) $ 75

Residential
Roofing permit  $ 125
Sidingpermit S.B.C. $ 125
Window permit S.B.C. $ 125
Mechanical permit StateStatuteor2.5% ofvalue, $60

S.B.C.  Minimum or2for $100
Plumbing permit StateStatuteor $15/fixture, $60

Minimum or2for $100

Removal orabandonment, U.F.C. $ 35firsttankplus $20each
underground tanks additional

Demolition permit S.B.C. $ 50 (Feewaived whendonein
conjunction withabuilding permit
orburnedbythefiredepartment)  

Signpermitapplication fee 1201.03.11f $ 20 (Temporary)  
Per1997U.B.C. Table1-Afor
permanent

Fencepermit 1201.03.2f $ 20

Grading/fillingpermit S.B.C. Per1997U.B.C. TableA-33-A
andA-33-B



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

R.O.WAdministrative Charge 901.11Subd. 5 $ 200 (inaddition toactualcosts)  

R.O.W. Annual 901.06Subd.1 $ 400
Registration Fee

R.O.W. Encroachment 901.01.2a $ 40
Permit
R.O.W. orPublicGroundExcavation 901.08Subd. 2 $ 200
Permit

Directional DrillingorBoring 901.08Subd. 2 $ 45per100L. Ft. (inaddition to
permit fee)  

901.08Subd. 2
OpenTrenching $ 60per100L. Ft. (inaddition to

permit fee)  

901.08Subd. 2
Obstruction Permit $ 20

SmallWireless Facility (persite)  901.08Subd. 2 $ 150 (inaddition toactualcosts)  

Security/Damage Deposit (non-utility) 901.08Subd. 6 Varies

Pole/PoleAttachment 901.08Subd. 2 $ 20

Underground Sprinkler/Irrigation 901.01.2d $ 20
System Permit

Unlawful Encroachment into 901.03Subd. 4 $ 200/minimum fee
Right-of-Way Anduptotheactualcostofremoval



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

VII.  ZoningandLandUseFees

LICENSE, PERMIT, SERVICE CHARGES ANDMISCELLANEOUS FEES
TypeofCharge/Fee CityCodeReference Charge/Fee

Comprehensive planamendment
Pre-application $ 200
Formal Application $ 800plus $1,000escrow

1201.04
Conditional usepermit  $ 400

Residential $ 500plus $1,000escrow
Non-residential

Fencepermit 1201.03 $ 20

Interimusepermit 1201.04
Residential $ 400

Non-residential $ 500plus $1,000escrow
Planned unitdevelopment

Concept Stage 1201.25 $ 500plus $1,000escrow

Development Stage 1201.25 $ 700plus $1,000escrow

FinalStage 1201.25 $ 500plus $1,000escrow

ByConditional UsePermit 1201.06 $ 500plus $1,000escrow
Signpermits 1201.03.11f

Temporary $ 20
Permanent Per1997U.B.C. Table1-A

Siteplanreview 1201.03 $ 200plus $1,000escrow
Subdivision sketch planreview 1202.03 $ 200

Subdivision (minorsubdivision) 1202.03 (Ord. 576) $ 500plus $1000escrow
Subdivision (preliminary plat) 1202.03 $ 600plus $25/lotplusan

escrow deposit, asfollows:  
5orfewer lots $ 1,000

Over5lots $ 3,000



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

VII.  ZoningandLandUseFees

LICENSE, PERMIT, SERVICE CHARGES ANDMISCELLANEOUS FEES
TypeofCharge/Fee CityCodeReference Charge/Fee

Subdivision (finalplat) 1202.03 $ 500plus $25/lotplusan
escrow deposit, asfollows:  

5orfewer lots $ 1,000
Over5lots $ 2,000

TrafficStudies whenrequired aspartof Multiple Escrow forestimated costof
studytobecompleted bytheanother application

plus $500.    

400Vacation orEasement

Variances 1201.05and $ 400
Residential 1202.09

Non-residential $ 500
Zoning Amendment (TextorMap) 1201.04 $ 600plus $1,000escrow
Zoning Permits 1201.07 $ 20
Zoning Verification Letter 1200 $ 50
Parkdedication (cashinlieuofland) 1202.07 $ 6,500/dwelling unitor8% of

rawlandvalue

Extension ofdeadline forrecording 1202.03 $ 200
resolutions

Extension ofplatapproval 1202.03 $ 200

Note: Basefeesarenon-refundable. Escrow deposits aretocoverconsulting engineer, attorney, and
otherconsultant expenses. Applicants areinformed thatanycityexpenses notcovered bythesefees
willbebilledtothem. Unused escrow feeswillbereturned toapplicant uponwritten request.   
Applications withmorethanonerequired escrow account shallberequired tosubmit theescrow based
onthehighest required escrow amount.    



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

SHOREWOOD COMMUNITY ANDEVENT CENTER

LocalNon-Profitswillbecharged 50percentoftheResident Rates
AllRates: Basedona2 (two) hourMinimum rental. AllRoom andKitchen rentals aresubject to
availability. Rate schedule subject tochange.  

BANQUET ROOM
CAPACITY:   

Shorewood160 - ROUND TABLES Regular
Resident Rates200 - THEATRE STYLE Rates

reflects 20%  Non- 
Time ofDay Hours discount)  Day ofWeek Resident

FridayorSaturday Evening 4:00PMto12:00Midnight 8.0 $ 590 $ 472
FridayorSaturday Day 9:00AMto1:00PM 4.0 $ 220 $ 176
FridayorSaturday FullDay 9:00AMto12:00Midnight 15.0 $ 688 $ 550
Sunday 9:00AMto11:00PM  $ 50/hour $ 40/hour
Monday -Thursday 9:00AMto12:00Midnight  $ 45/hour $ 36/hour
Damage Deposit    $ 200 $ 200
Custodial Fee < 50People   $ 100 $ 100
51to200People $ 200 $ 200
ACTIVITY ROOM Non- Resident Rates
CAPACITY: 60 Time ofDay Resident ( reflects 20%  
Day ofWeek Hours Rates discount)  

FridayorSaturday 9:00AMto12:00Midnight  $ 42/hour $ 34/hour
Sunday 9:00AMto11:00PM  $ 36/hour $ 28/hour
Monday - Thursday 9:00AMto12:00Midnight  $ 36hour $ 28/hour
Custodial Fee   $ 50 $ 50
CONFERENCE ROOM Non- Resident Rates
CAPACITY: 20 Resident ( reflects 20%  

Time ofDay HoursDay ofWeek Rates discount)  
FridayorSaturday 9:00AMto12:00Midnight 5.0  $ 127 $ 102
Sunday - Thursday 9:00AMto11:00PM 2-hr/min $ 30/hour $ 24/hour
Custodial Fee   $ 20 $ 20
COMMERCIAL KITCHEN Security
Day ofWeek Rental Fee Storage Fee Deposit
Monday-Friday $ 30/hourupto4hours $ 50Month foronerental $ 200

175for4to8hours area/$25peraddspace
Over8hoursadd $30/hour



CityofShorewood MasterFeeSchedule/Adopted 5/22/2017/MostRecent Update 20221/1/2023

SHOREWOOD COMMUNITY ANDEVENT CENTER
RENTAL ITEMS

Linens (specify long ormedium length):    

Rounds @12.00ea.   

Rectangles @12.00ea.   

Dinnerware place settings (4pc): (dinner plate, dessert/salad plates, cup/saucer)        

2.00perplacesetting

0.45peradditional piece

Flatware place settings (4pc): dinner knife, dinner fork, salad fork, teaspoon

1.50perplacesetting

0.35peradditional piece

Glassware (1pc) settings: (water glass, wine glass)  

0.50ea.  

Coffee: $10/pot

Additional feesand/ordamage deposits mayberequired foruniqueset-upordecoration requests



2F

MEETING
TYPE

RegularCityofShorewood Council Meeting Item Meeting

Title/Subject:   2023MileageReimbursementRate
Meeting Date: Monday, January 9, 2023
Prepared by:  Sandie Thone, CityClerk/HRDirector
Reviewed by:  MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator

Background: Minnesota lawauthorizes publicentities tocompensate orreimburse their
employees formileage ortopayamonthly orperiodic allowance, butnotboth. Pursuant
totheShorewood Personnel Policy thecityreimburses employees formileage inlieuof
providing amonthly orperiodic allowance fortheuseoftheirownvehicles forwork
purposes.   

Effective January 1, 2023, theIRSstandard mileage ratesfortheuseofacar (vans,  
pickups, orpanel trucks) willbe65.5centspermileforbusiness milesdriven, upthree
cents fromthemid-year increase of62.5cents (effective July1) andupseven cents
fromthe58.5centssetatthefirstoftheyearin2022. Thestandard mileage ratefor
business isbasedonanannual studyofthefixedandvariable costsofoperating an
automobile.   

Staff recommends thatthecitycouncil adopt thepractice offollowing theIRSstandard
mileage ratesforreimbursing employee mileage pursuant totheShorewood Personnel
Policy.   

Recommendation/ActionRequested: Staff respectfully recommends thecouncil
approve thepractice offollowing theIRSstandard mileage rates foremployee mileage
reimbursement. Motion, secondandsimplemajorityrequired.   

ConnectiontoVision /Mission: Consistency inproviding thecommunity withquality
public services, asustainable taxbaseandsound financial management through
effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:   CouncilOutofStateTravelPolicyAnnualReview 2G
Meeting Date: Monday, January 9, 2023

MEETING TYPEPrepared by:  Sandie Thone, CityClerk/HRDirector
Regular MeetingReviewed by:  MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator

Background: AnActbytheMinnesota Legislature in2005 imposed anobligation on
thcities toestablish anofficial travelpolicy forelected officials.  Onthe9 dayofJanuary

in2006Shorewood CityCouncil adopted theattached policy forOut-of-StateTravelby
Members oftheCityCouncil.    

Thepolicyaddresses therequirements forthefollowing:  

1) When traveloutside ofthestate isappropriate
2) Applicable expense limits
3) Procedures forapproval ofthetravel

Thepolicy isrequired tobereviewed andvotedupononanannual basis.  Thecouncil
canchoose toapprove theattached policyoramend theattached policy.  Therehave
beennoamendments madetotheTravel Policysince itsadoption in2006.    

Recommendation/ActionRequested: Staff respectfully recommends thecouncil
review theattached Travel Policy, makeamendments ifdesired andapprove theTravel
Policyasisorasamended.  Motion, secondandsimplemajorityrequired.    

ConnectiontoVision /Mission: Consistency inproviding thecommunity withquality
public services, asustainable taxbaseandsound financial management through
effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



OUTOFSTATETRAVELPOLICYFORMEMBERSOFTHECITYCOUNCIL

PURPOSE

TheCityofShorewood recognizes thatitselected officials mayattimesreceive value
fromtraveling outoftheState forworkshops, conferences, events, andother
assignments.  Thispolicysetsforththeconditions underwhichout-of-state travelwillbe
reimbursed bytheCity.  

GENERALGUIDELINES

1. Theevent, workshop, conference, orassignment mustbeapproved inadvance
bytheCityCouncil atanopenmeeting andmust includeanestimate ofthecost
ofthetravel.  Inevaluating theout-of-state travel request, theCouncil will
consider thefollowing:  

a. Whether theelected official willbereceiving training onissues relevant to
theCityorhisorherroleasthemayororcouncil member.  

b. Whether theelected official willbemeeting andworking withotherelected
officials fromaround thecountry toexchange ideasontopicsofrelevance
totheCityorontheofficial rolesofelected officials.  

c. Whether theelected official willbereviewing afacilityorfunction thatis
similar innature toonethatiscurrently operating at, orunder
consideration by, theCitywhere thepurpose forthetripistostudy the
facilityorfunction tobringback ideas fortheconsideration ofthefull
Council.  

d. Whether theelected official hasbeenspecifically assigned bytheCouncil
tovisitanother cityforthepurpose ofestablishing agoodwill relationship,  
suchasa “sister city” relationship.  

e. Whether theelected official hasbeenspecifically assigned bytheCouncil
totestifyonbehalfoftheCityattheUnited States Congress orotherwise
tomeetwithfederal officials onbehalfoftheCity.  

f. Whether theCityhassufficient funding available inthebudget topaythe
costofthetrip.  

2. Noreimbursement willbemadeforattendance atevents sponsored byor
affiliated withpolitical parties.  

3. TheCitymaymakepayments inadvance forairfare, lodging, andregistration if
specifically approved bytheCouncil.  Otherwise, allpayments willbemade as
reimbursements totheelected official.  



4. TheCitywillreimburse fortransportation, lodging, meals, registration, and
incidental costsasfollows:  

a. Airfare willbereimbursed atcoach rate.  
b. Mileage willbereimbursed attheIRSrate.  Iftwoormorecouncil

members travelbycar, onlyonedriverwillreceive reimbursement.  The
Citywillreimburse forthecostofrentinganautomobile ifnecessary, to
conduct Citybusiness.  

c. Lodging andmealcostsarelimited tothosewhicharereasonable and
necessary.  

d. Receipts arerequired forlodging, airfare, parking, andmealsandshould
accompany anexpense report form.  Itisnotnecessary tohave receipts
forpublic transportation, cabsandtips.  Theexpense report shallbe
submitted totheCityClerkorFinance Department forpayment.  

e. TheCitywillnotreimburse foralcoholic beverages, personal telephone
calls, costsassociated withtheattendance ofafamily member, rentalof
luxury vehicles, mealexpenses included inthecostofregistration, or
recreational expenses suchasgolfortennis.  

5. Exceptions tothispolicycanbemadebymajority voteoftheCityCouncil.  

6. Thispolicy shallbereviewed bytheCityCouncil atitsfirstmeeting inJanuary
eachyear, andamendments tothepolicymustbemadebyResolution ofthe
CityCouncil.  

Policy adopted onJanuary9, 2006.  



2H

MEETING TYPE
RegularMeetingCityofShorewood Council Meeting Update

Title / Subject:  Authorize Advertisement forOneLightEquipment Operator forPublic Works
Meeting Date:   January 9, 2023
Prepared by:  LarryBrown, Director ofPublicWorks
Reviewed by:    MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:     2023Approved Budget, Excerpt AFSCME UnionContract

Background: OnDecember 12, 2022, theCityCouncil approved theproposed 2023 Operating
Budget. Thebudget includes theaddition ofoneadditional position ofaLightEquipment
Operator (LEO) fortheDepartment ofPublic Works.  Page2ofAttachment 1citesthisproposal.    
Thisadditional individual willaidthedepartment inresponding toresident needs and
performing maintenance dutieswithin theparks.   

Financial Considerations: Asproposed, thisfull-timeposition willbefunded twenty percent
fromthePublic Works Operating Budget andeighty percent fromtheParkOperating Budget.  

Inaccordance with thecurrent Union Bargaining Agreement thewage range forthisposition is
28.59perhourstarting wageto $34.58perhourafter fiveyears, asshown inAttachment 2.  

Recommendation/ Action Requested: Staff recommends approval ofaMotion bytheCity
Council thatauthorizes advertisement foroneLightEquipment Operator, asoutlined herein.  

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page 1



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

2ITitle/Subject:   ResolutionAcceptingDonationstoArcticFeverEvent
Meeting Date: Monday, January 9, 2023 MEETING
Prepared by:  Janelle Crossfield, Park/RecDirector TYPE
Reviewed by:  MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator Regular
Attachments:  Resolution23-002 Meeting

PolicyConsideration:  Pursuant toMinnesota State Statutes sections §465.03and
471.17alldonations orgiftsofrealandpersonal property, including donations forthe

benefit ofpublic recreational services, mustbeaccepted bythecitycouncil.  

Background:  Thefollowing persons orentities haveoffered tocontribute thecash
amounts/non-monetary itemssetforthbelow, forthepurpose ofthe2023ArcticFever
EventbeingheldonJanuary 20andJanuary 21, 2023:  

NameofDonor Amount/Item
XcelEnergy     $ 300
JoeyNova’sPizza PizzaandS’moreKits
Excelsior EyeCare RayBanSunglasses, CaseandCleaner
Caribou Coffee, Shorewood Coffee

FinancialConsiderations: Thisdonation willhelptocoverexpenses incurred forthe
2023ArcticFeverEvent.  

ActionRequested: Staff respectfully recommends thecitycouncil approve the
Resolution Accepting Donations asDelineated intheResolution tothe2023 Arctic
FeverEvent anddirectstaff tosendathankyounotetoalldonors.    
Motion, second andtwo-thirdsmajority voterequired.    

ConnectiontoVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable tax
base, andsound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary
leadership.       

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page 1



CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION23-002

ARESOLUTIONACCEPTINGDONATIONSTOTHE
CITYOFSHOREWOOD2023ARCTICFEVEREVENT

WHEREAS, theCityofShorewood isgenerally authorized toaccept donations ofreal
andpersonal property pursuant toMinnesota Statutes Section 465.03forthebenefit of
itscitizens, andisspecifically authorized toaccept giftsandisauthorized toaccept gifts
forthebenefit oftheirpublic recreational services pursuant toMinnesota Statutes
section 471.17; and

WHEREAS, thefollowing persons andentities haveoffered tocontribute adonation as
setforthbelowtothecity:  

NameofDonor Amount/Item
XcelEnergy     $ 300
JoeyNova’sPizza PizzaandS’moreKits
Excelsior EyeCare RayBanSunglasses, CaseandCleaner
Caribou Coffee, Shorewood Coffee

WHEREAS, thetermsorconditions ofthedonations aretobeusedforthe2023 Arctic
FeverEvent; and

WHEREAS, allsuchdonations havebeencontributed tothecityforthebenefit ofits
citizens, asallowed bylaw; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil findsthatitisappropriate toaccept thedonation offered.  

NOWTHEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
SHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA ASFOLLOWS:  

1. Thedonations described above areaccepted andshallbeusedtoestablish
and/oroperate services eitheraloneorincooperation withothers, asallowed by
law.  

2. Thecityclerk ishereby directed toissuereceipts toeachdonor acknowledging
thecity’sreceipt ofthedonor’sdonation.  

Passed bytheCityCouncil ofShorewood, Minnesota this9thdayofJanuary 2023

JenniferLabadie, Mayor



SandieThone, CityClerk



ITEM
2J

MEETING TYPE
RegularMeetingCityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title / Subject:   ApprovingSeasonalHires:  IceRinkAttendants

Meeting Date:     Monday, January 9, 2023

Prepared by:  Janelle Crossfield, ParksandRecreation Director

Reviewed by: MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator

Background:   TheCityofShorewood currently hastwoparkswithskating rinksthat
provide warming house facilities.  TheparksareCathcart ParkandManor Park.  The
skating rinkstypically openasearlyasisphysically possible withwinter conditions for
rinkflooding.  Oncetherinksarecompleted, weather permitting, thewarming houses at
thetwoparksareopenMonday through Friday from3:30p.m. to9:00p.m., Saturday
from11:00a.m. to9:00p.m. andSunday fromNoonto9:00p.m. andextended hours
onplanned school closure dayssuchasholidays orworkshop days from10:00a.m. to
9:00p.m.  

Wecurrently arestriving forthesehourshowever, withlimited applicants and
unfavorable iceconditions atManor weplantofocusallstaffing tokeepCathcart Park
Warming House openasmanyhoursaspossible.   

Inorder tooperate thewarming house facilities attheabove parks, thecityhires
seasonal employees toserveasicerinkattendants.  Thefollowing twopeople have
submitted thenecessary application materials toberinkattendants:  

1. KatieEisemann
2. Nataley Vasser

Additionally, authority isrequested toapprove andaddadditional IceRinkAttendants by
theParksandRecreation Director asneeded toconduct warming house operations for
theremainder oftheseason.   

Recommendation / ActionRequested:   
Staff respectfully requests thecitycouncil approve theabove twoapplicants.  Duetothe
lengthoftimebefore thenextCouncil meeting, staffalsorequests forauthority to
approve andaddadditional IceRinkAttendants asneeded toconduct warming house
operations fortheremainder oftheseason.  

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents qualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.    
C:\\Users\\bpricco\\AppData\\Local\\Microsoft\\Windows\\INetCache\\Content.Outlook\\F4DJN8JM\\IceRink Attendant Memo- 2J.doc



2K
MEETING

TYPE
REGULAR

CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:  ApproveAgreementsforStrawberryLaneStreet
ImprovementsProject; CityProject19-05

Meeting Date: Monday, January 9, 2023
Prepared By:  Andrew Budde, CityEngineer
Reviewed By:  MarkNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:  Agreements, Resolution

Background:  TheShorewood CityCouncil awarded theStrawberry Lane
Improvements project which includes Peach Circle, Strawberry Court, drainage
improvements, watermain, andasidewalk ontheeastsideofStrawberry Lane.  The
project requires acquisition ofroadway easements anddrainage & utilityeasements to
complete theproject.  Staffhassecured mostofthepermanent easements required for
theproject andmanyoftherightofentries.  Staff iscontinuing tomeetwithresidents
throughout theproject todiscuss andacquire theremaining rightofentries and
easements fortheproject.  Oneparcel isanticipated torequire eminent domain andis
tobediscussed underaseparate agenda item.    

FinancialConsiderations: Costs foreasement acquisition hasbeenaccounted for in
theCapital Improvement Planandwouldutilizeacombination ofStreet & UtilityBonds,  
Water Fund, Sanitary Fund, andStorm Sewer Fund.    

Recommendation/ActionRequested: Staff recommends theCityCouncil adopt the
Resolution assubmitted thattheagreements for5825Strawberry Lane, 5845
Strawberry Lane, 5885Strawberry Lane, 5970Strawberry Lane, 6060Strawberry Lane,  
6075Strawberry Lane, 6170Strawberry Lane, and6185Strawberry Lane forthe
Strawberry LaneStreet Improvements project.   

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1

































































CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION23-003

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGAGREEMENTSFORSTRAWBERRYLANESTREET
IMRPOVEMENTSPROJECT, CITYPROJECT19-05

WHEREAS, theCityofShorewood (“City”) approved thePlans & Specifications forthe
Strawberry LaneStreet Improvements Project andauthorized bidding onSeptember 12,  
2022; and

WHEREAS, theCityawarded theStrawberry LaneStreet Improvements Project on
October 24, 2022; and

WHEREAS, theCitystaffhavenegotiated andagreed toseveral permanent easements
andrightofentries asnecessary fortheStrawberry LaneStreet Improvements Project
located at5825Strawberry Lane, 5845 Strawberry Lane, 5885Strawberry Lane, 5970
Strawberry Lane, 6060Strawberry Lane, 6075Strawberry Lane, 6170Strawberry Lane,  
and6185Strawberry Lane; and

WHEREAS, theCitywillcontinue toacquire rightofentryandeasement agreements
withproperty owners toaccommodate drainage, grading, staging, treeremoval,  
landscaping, andothermisc. impacts thatareinmutual benefit oftheresident andthe
city; and

WHEREAS, theproject isincluded inthe2023Capital Improvements Planandwillfund
theproject through acombination ofStreet & UtilityBonds, Water Fund, Sanitary Fund,  
andtheStormwater Fund; and

NOWTHEREFORE, ITRESOLVED: thattheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood
hereby approves theagreement with5825Strawberry Lane, 5845Strawberry Lane,  
6060Strawberry Lane, 5885Strawberry Lane, 5970Strawberry Lane, 6075Strawberry
Lane, 6170 Strawberry Lane, and6185Strawberry LanefortheStrawberry Lane
Improvements Project andauthorizes recording andpayment.   

thADOPTED BYTHE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this9 dayofJanuary
2023.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



2L

MEETING TYPE
RegularMeetingCityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title / Subject:   ApprovalofExtension forExcelsiorWoods

Applicant: RedGraniteConstruction
Location: 20325ExcelsiorBlvd

MeetingDate:     January9, 2023
Preparedby:    JasonCarlson, PlanningTechnician
Reviewedby:  MarieDarling, PlanningDirector

Attachments:     Resolution 21-073
Applicants request
Resolution

Background:  RedGraniteConstruction hassubmitted theirrequesttoextendthedevelopment
agreement forExcelsiorWoodsforanadditional 180days (toJune18, 2023).   

Theapplicanthastoldstaffthattheyhavehaddelaysandarenotreadytorecordtheplat. The
previousdeadlineextension wasapprovedonJune27, 2022. Thecurrentdeadlinewouldhaveexpired
onDecember 20, 2022.  

PublicTestimony:  Allrequired publictestimony waspreviously takenduringthepreliminary andfinal
platreview. Nonoticesaresentforthistypeofrequest.     

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations:  Theextension hasnoimpactonthebudget.  

Recommendation / ActionRequested:  Staffrecommends approvaloftherequest foranextension to
thefinalplatforExcelsiorWoodsonproperty locatedat20325ExcelsiorBoulevard, subjecttothe
findingsandconditions intheattachedresolution.  

Actiononthisrequest requiresasimplemajority.  

NextStepsandTimelines:  ShouldtheCityCouncil approvethisrequest; thedeveloper wouldneedto
satisfyallconditionsofapprovalasspecified inthefinalplatresolution anddevelopment agreement
priortobeginning workonthesite.  

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.   

S:\\Planning\\Planning Files\\Applications\\2021 Cases\\Excelsior Woods\\Extension offinalplat approvals\\Extension\\CAFMemo 01092023 extension.docx



RESOLUTION21-073

CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGAFINALPLATTOBECALLED
EXCELSIORWOODSFORPROPERTYLOCATED

AT20325EXCELSIORBOULEVARD

WHEREAS, RedGranite Construction, LLC. (the “Applicant”), hassubmitted arequest fora
finalplatof “Excelsior Woods” under theShorewood CityCodeandunderChapter 462of
Minnesota Statutes; and

WHEREAS, theproperty islegallydescribed as:  

Lot37, Auditor’sSubdivision No. 141, Hennepin County, Minnesota;  

WHEREAS, thefinalplatisconsistent withthepreliminary plat, conditional usepermit forfilland
variances approved forthesubdivision onApril27, 2020, and

WHEREAS, adevelopment agreement hasbeenprepared aspartofthefinalplatapplication.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood:  

1. TheplatofExcelsior Woods for4lotstoallowtwotwin-homes ishereby approved according
totheplansandmaterials submitted April20and21, andMay10, 11and14, 2021, subject
totheconditions listedbelow.  

2. Theapproval isspecifically conditioned upon thetermsandconditions contained inthe
Development Agreement forthesubdivision.    

3. TheMayor andCityAdministrator arehereby authorized toexecute theDevelopment
Agreement onbehalfoftheCityCouncil.  

4. Thefinalplat, development agreement andallrelated documents listedbelow, shallbefiled
withHennepin County, andasrequired bytheDevelopment Agreement.  

5. Priortoreleaseofthesubdivision forrecording thefinalplat, theApplicant shallsubmit the
information andrevised plansconsistent withtheregulations inCityCode, andasfollows:  
a. Revised homeowner association (HOA) documents thatindicate maintenance

responsibility forthestormwater filtration basin, retaining wall, wetland buffers andbuffer
monuments consistent withtheconservation easement andthestormwater agreement.   

b. Executed easements andagreements, including: 1) development agreement; 2)  
conservation easements over thewetland buffers; 3) anencroachment agreement for
theretaining wall; and4) amaintenance agreement overthestormwater basin.    

c. Payment ofthefollowing fees: parkdedication ($19,500); andlocalsanitary sewer
access charge ($3,600); andwater connection charges ($8,950). Thewaterconnection
feeiscalculated as $10,000perlotminus theengineer’sestimate ofthecoststoinstall
thepublicportionofthewatermain andservice installation.    

d. Submission ofallrequired financial guarantees/escrow depositasindicated inthe
development agreement.  

e. Approval ofthehydrant locations fromtheFireMarshall (Excelsior FireDistrict).    
f. Anyrequired permits fromotheragencies.  



g. Revised construction management planincluding, butnotlimited to, thehaulroutefor
thematerial tobeimported andincrease thestreetcleaning toonceperdaywhilefill
material isbeing brought tothesite.   

h. Revised plansandother information consistent withtheEngineer’sMemodatedJune
16, 2021andCityCode, asfollows:  
1) Revise theplattoinclude: 1) drainage andutilityeasement over thewetland buffer;  

2) right-of-waywithin10feetofthepavedsurfaceofSt. Albans BayRoad inthe
southeast corneroftheproperty; and3) adjust thedrainage andutilityeasements
accordingly.   

2) Revise theconstruction management planto: 1) indicate thehaulrouteconsistent
withtheapproved conditional usepermit (StateHighway 7through theChristmas
LakeRoadintersection toExcelsior Boulevard andaccess thesitefromSt. Albans
BayRoad); 2) correct theconstruction hours; and3) propose alocation foroff-street
parking forthecontractor vehicles.  

3) Revise theplanstoshowaconforming amountofimpervious surface coverage on
Lot3.    

4) Revise thelandscaping planto: 1) add (ataminimum) 2additional treesasrequired
bythetreepreservation policy; 2) increase theplantingsizeofdeciduous trees to3
inchesoraddeightadditional treesthatmeet thecity’srequirements; 3) relocate the
treesaminimum of10feetfromutilitymains andprivate utilityservices.  

5) Revise thegrading plan/erosion control planto: 1) indicateadoublerowofsiltfence
toprotect thewetland totheeastduring importofmaterial andmassgrading; 2) add
anotethatground covershallberestored todisturbed areaswithin7daysafter
grading hasbeencompleted; and3) addwetland buffermonuments.  Monuments
maybeconsistent withCityorWatershed design.    

6) Revise thetreepreservation plantoremove impacts totreesonadjacent properties
asmaybeneeded orsubmit signed agreements fromtheaffected property owners
granting permission fortheremoval.  Tobeconsidered saved, noactivity ispermitted
within thedriplineofthetreeandfencing isrequired tobeinstalled andinspected
priortomassgrading.    

6. Priortoissuance ofbuilding permits, theApplicant shallsubmitorcomplete thefollowing:  
a. Submit proofofrecording forthesubdivision, including theresolution, easements, HOA

documents, andagreements.  
b. Submitasoilsreport fromalicensed professional engineer thatindicates thesoils

present onthesiteandbrought inareadequate fortheconstruction ofthestructures.  
c. Install thewetland buffermonuments.  
d. Install thepublic improvements andcomplete grading asdirected inthedevelopment

agreement.    
e. Acquire allpermits forconstruction, including right-of-waypermits.    

7. Thesiteshall remain incompliance withthecity’streepreservation policyuntilall
construction inthesubdivision iscomplete.    

8. Impervious surfacecoverage maynotexceed33percent onanyofthelots.    

9. Thefinalplatshallexpire in180daysiftheApplicant hasnotrecorded thefinalplatat
Hennepin County.  TheApplicant mayrequestanextension totheapproval subject tothe
requirements ofSection 1202.03Subd. 2. f. (3).    

2



thADOPTEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITYOFSHOREWOODthis28 Dayof
June, 2021.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor
ATTEST:  

Sandie Thone, City Clerk

3



MarieDarling

From: LukeBusker <luke@redgraniteconstruction. com> 
Sent: Monday, December 19, 202212:05PM
To: MarieDarling
Subject: Extension Request

GoodMorningMarie,  
Pleasefile/askforanextensionofthedateonthefinalplatandthedevelopment contractandadditional 6months.  I
appreciate allofyourhelp!  
IfIdon'ttalktoyouinthemeantime, haveaMerryChristmas!  

LukeBusker
612-490-1037

1



RESOLUTION23-003

CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGANEXTENSIONTOTHE
FINALPLATAPPROVALFOREXCELSIORWOODS

FORPROPERTYAT20325EXCELSIORBOULEVARD

WHEREAS, theCityofShorewood approved aprevious request foranextension onJune27,  
2022fromRedGranite Construction, LLC. (the “Applicant”) forafinalplatanddevelopment
agreement extension fortheproperty legallydescribed as:  

Lot37, Auditor’sSubdivision No. 141, Hennepin County, Minnesota;  

WHEREAS, Resolution 22-059included acondition thattheapprovals wouldexpire in180days
unless thefinalplatandotherrequired materials arerecorded oranextension hasbeen
approved; and

WHEREAS, the180-dayperiodwouldhaveexpired onDec20, 2022, without request foran
extension subject toChapter 1202.03Subd. 3c; and

WHEREAS, theApplicant hasoutstanding conditions ofapproval thattheyhaveyettosatisfy.    

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood thatthe
deadline tosubmit thefinalplattobecalled “Excelsior Woods”, ishereby extended andthe
Agreement amendments arehereby approved, subject tothefollowing conditions:  

1. Thefinalplatapproved bytheCityofShorewood Resolution 21-073andextended
byresolution berecorded withthecounty recorder orregistrar oftitlestoJune18,  
2023.   

2. Allconditions listedinResolution 21-073shallbeadhered to.   

ADOPTEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITYOFSHOREWOODthis9thdayof
January, 2023.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor
ATTEST:  

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

2MTitle/Subject:   COVIDLeaveExpiration
MEETINGTYPEMeeting Date: Monday, January 9, 2023

REGULARPrepared by:  Sandie Thone, CityClerk/HRDirector
Reviewed by:  MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator

JoeRigdon, Finance Director

Background: Under theFamilies FirstCoronavirus Response Act (“FFCRA”)  
employers withlessthan500employees wererequired toofferEmergency PaidSick
Leave intheamountof80hours toeachqualifying employee effective April1, 2020.  If
employees wereunable towork, ortelework because oftheCOVID-19pandemic
causing themtoquarantine orisolate, theywouldbeeligible for80hoursofpaidsick
leaveunder thefederal legislation. Inaddition tothe80hoursofFFCRA leaveabove,  
Shorewood extended anadditional 80hoursofCOVID leavetoemployees ifnecessary,  
whichwouldallowanemployee togonegatively intotheirsickleavebankandpayit
backover timeafterreturning towork.  ThisEmergency PaidSickLeave benefit expired
onDecember 31, 2020andShorewood CityCouncil approved extensions toJune30,  
2022.    

Asthemajority ofShorewood employees havebenefited fromthisemergency sick
leavepolicyandthesituation haschanged significantly, staff isrequesting theCity
Council approve theexpiration ofthisCOVID sick leavepolicyeffective January 1,  
2023.  Theexpiration willallowstaff toremove allaccrual banks fromthesystem and
theywillnolongerbeavailable foremployees todrawfrom.  Employees willberequired
tousetheir regular sickleave.      

Recommendation/ActionRequested: Staff respectfully recommends thecitycouncil
approve theexpiration ofCOVID emergency sickpaypolicy (COVID-EandCOVID-19)  
forShorewood cityemployees effective January 1, 2023. Motion, second, andsimple
majorityvoterequired.    

ConnectiontoVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable tax
base, andsound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary
leadership.       

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page 1



RESOLUTION23-005
CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGTHEEXPIRATIONOFTHECOVIDEMERGENCY
LEAVEPOLICYFORSHOREWOODEMPLOYEES

WHEREAS, theCOVID-19pandemic required government totakeextraordinary
stepstorespond tothepublichealthemergency; and,  

WHEREAS, under theFamilies FirstCoronavirus Response Act (“FFCRA”), employers
with lessthan500employees wererequired toofferEmergency PaidSickLeave inthe
amount of80hours toeachqualifying employee effective April1, 2020; and

WHEREAS, thisEmergency PaidSickLeave benefit expired onDecember 31, 2020
andtheCityofShorewood extended COVID emergency sickleave, extending upto80
hoursofsickleavetoemployees through June30, 2022.    

WHEREAS, themajority ofShorewood employees havebenefited fromthisemergency
sickleaveandthesituation haschanged significantly, staff isrequesting theexpiration
ofthisCOVID sickleavepolicyandthatallaccrual banks beremoved fromthesystem
andnolonger available.    

NOWTHEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
SHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA thattheCOVID Emergency SickLeave policy isexpired
asofJanuary 1, 2023andallaccrual bankswillberemoved fromthesystem andno
longer available.    

Adopted bytheCityCouncil ofShorewood, Minnesota the9thdayofJanuary 2023.   

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



2N

MEETINGTYPE
RegularMeeting

CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:  Approving Promotion ofStephany Vasser Recreation Specialist
Meeting Date:  Monday, January9, 2023
Prepared by:   Janelle Crossfield, ParksandRecreation Director
Reviewed by:   EdShukle, Interim CityAdministrator

Policy Consideration:  Pursuant toShorewood Personnel PolicySection3.08Allnew, rehired,  
promoted orreassigned employees shall complete asix (6) month probationary period upon
assuming theirnewpositions.  Thisperiod shall beused toobserve theemployee’swork habits
andability toperform thework theyarerequired todo.     

Background:  Thecitymostrecently recruited candidates fortheRecreation Specialist
Position. Stephany Vasser wasselected fortheposition basedonheryearsofservice tothe
community bothasapart-timeemployee andasaformerParks Commissioner.   

Stephany hasbeenwiththeCityforeightyears invarious part-timepositions suchasIceRink
Attendant andShorewood Community andEventCenter Attendant. Shehasalsoassisted with
workatCityHallandotherprograms andactivities. Additionally, Stephany servedasaengaged
Parks Commissioner whenshefrequently attended parksandevents inothercommunities and
reported onherexperiences.  Stephany asproven tobeawealthofknowledge andsupport for
theParksandRecreation Director.   

Financial Considerations: Staff isrecommending Stephany’scompensation ratebesetat
Grade3, StepAofShorewood’sCompensation Planof $15.43hourly.  Theposition willbe
reviewed atthe6-monthanniversary forconsideration ofpermanent appointment.  Theposition
isnon-exemptandPERAeligible

Action Requested: Staff respectfully recommends thecitycouncil approve Stephany Vasser’s
promotion asaprobationary employee inthecapacity ofRecreation Specialist fortheCityof
Shorewood.   Motion, secondandsimplemajority voterequired.  Ifthecouncil approves his
appointment, herfirstdayofemployment isanticipated tobeJanuary 10, 2023.   

Connection toVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents qualitypublicservices, a
sustainable taxbase, andsound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary
leadership.       

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



4A

MEETINGTYPE
CouncilMeetingCityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title / Subject:   Deterring Vandalism

Meeting Date:     January9, 2023

Prepared by:   Janelle Crossfield, ParksandRecreation Director
Reviewed by: MarieDarling, Planning Director andEdShukle, Interim City

Administrator

Attachments:  FlashCAM Packet
Vandalism Repair Quote

Background:  TheCityofShorewood hasexperienced anincrease inthelevelof
vandalism andtheassociated costsofrepairs totherestrooms atManor Park. Staff
haveprepared aselection ofoptions fordeterring vandalism fortheParksCommission
review. Options include: security camera similar totheonesettobeinstalled atBadger
Park, aFlashCAM solarpowered motion censored camera, public safety enforcement
and/oracommunity mural.   

Security Camera: $9,000; $50annually forrecurring monitoring fees
Atwo-camera videosurveillance system)  

2-5mphighresolution vandal resistant dome cameras withvarifocal lenses
Wallhanging NVRlockbox
20inchmonitor
Hanwha NVRwith30daysofvideo storage
UPSforVideo System- Backup Power andSurge Protection

FlashCAM: $7,850
Asolar-powered, portable, motion-sensing camera withvoice recording)   

Completely portable andself-sustaining: solar-charged andeasytomove
Nointernet network required, photos arereceived viaBluetooth
Powerful active deterrence, stopping itbefore ithappens isthegoal
High-resolution photo: technology isproven toprovide prosecutable photos and
canIDasuspect from100’soffeetaway

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.    



Public Safety Enforcement:   
Requesting South LakeMinnetonka Police Department toincrease patrolatManor Park

Community Mural: $2,000 - $10,000
Engaging thecommunity tocreateamural inManor Parkinthebathrooms and/oron
theexterior ofthebuilding. Research hasshown thatartdeters vandalism byremoving
theblankcanvas thatattracts vandals inthefirstplace. Italsocreates arelationship
withthespaceandcanprovide anapproach toprevent vandalism, improve park
amenities, engage residents youngandoldaswellasstrengthen community pride.  
Grants maybeobtained tohelpcover theexpenses.   

StaffRecommendation: Staff recommends adualapproach oftheFlashCAM anda
community mural.  

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations:   
FlashCAM: $7,850
Community Mural: $2,000-10,000
Vandalism Repair: $3,970

RecommendedNextSteps:    

Purchase andinstall FlashCAM atManor Park
Develop planandbudget formuralatManor Park



LetterofIntent

ProjectNameShorewoodParks
Scopeofproject: Repairvandalism
Proposaldate: 12/13/2022
Contact:  
Janelle Crossfield
5755Country Club Road
Shorewood, Mn55331
Projectphone: 612-960-7902
Architectanddateofplans: none
Estimatedtimeframeforconstruction: TBD.  

Intentoftotalproject: Repaint/restore4parkrestrooms

Foreachrestroom:  

Paint4walls- onecolor
PaintConcretefloor- grey
Paintoneceiling- white

Foronerestroom:  
Replacewalllavandfaucet

AllowancesincludedinDanberryprice:   

Permits: 0
Plumbing fixtures ( onewall lavandsingle handle chrome faucet)   
Electrical- 0 (onehanddryer repair tobedetermined)  
Drywall repair0
Appliances 0
Paint: incl.  

Haven’tyouwaited longenough?  
5413 Manitou Road | Tonka Bay, MN 55331

www.danberrybuildingcorp. com
bc638945



NormalPaymentschedule:  

Fullpayment uponsubstantial completion.  

Priceincludesliabilityinsuranceandworkcompcoverage.  Priceincludes
materialandlaborandcleanup.  

Timingtobedetermined- worktobecompletedinapprox.. 5workingdays.  

3970.00

DanberrySignature:  

DirectorSignature/date:  

A.  
ANYPERSONORCOMPANYSUPPLYINGLABORORMATERIALFORTHIS
IMPROVEMENTTOYOURPROPERTYMAYFILEALIENAGAINSTYOUR
PROPERTYIFTHATPERSONORCOMPANYISNOTPAIDFOR

CONTRIBUTIONS.  

B.UNDERMINNESOTALAWYOUHAVETHERIGHTTOPAYPERSONSWHO
SUPPLIEDLABORORMATERIALSFORTHISIMPROVEMENTDIRECTLYAND
DEDUCTTHISAMOUNTFROMOURCONTRACTPRICE, ORWITHHOLDTHE
AMOUNTSDUETHEMFROMUSUNTIL120DAYSAFTERCOMPLETIONOF
THEIMPROVEMENTUNLESSWEGIVEYOUALEINWAIVERSIGNEDBYTHE
PERSONSWHOSUPPLIEDANYLABORORMATERIALFORTHE
IMPROVEMENTANDWHOGAVEYOUTIMELYNOTICE.  

Minnesota lawallows fora3daywritten rescission afterdateofsigning

Haven’tyouwaited longenough?  
5413 Manitou Road | Tonka Bay, MN 55331

www.danberrybuildingcorp. com
bc638945



Haven’tyouwaited longenough?  
5413 Manitou Road | Tonka Bay, MN 55331

www.danberrybuildingcorp. com
bc638945





























4B
MEETINGTYPE
RegularMeeting

CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title / Subject:   Freeman Park Trail Rehabilitation Project

Location:  6000Eureka Road

Meeting Date:     January9, 2023

Prepared by:   MarieDarling, Planning Director

Attachments:  Graphic withCostEstimates foreachtrailsegment

Videosoftheexisting Freeman Parktrailconditions maybefoundonthe
city’swebsite byselecting: Government/CityDepartments/Parks/Trails
andscrolling tothebottomofthepageorwiththislink:   
WelcometoShorewood, MN

Background:   Thetrails inFreeman Parkareinneedofrepaving andthisprojectwasincluded
inthe2023CIPwithatotalestimated costof $400,000.  Theattached planfortheFreeman
ParkTrailReconstruction wasprepared bytheCityEngineer andsummarizes eachsection of
theprojectandtheircosts.  Wearelooking forguidance onseveral options sothatweknow
whatneeds tobeincluded intheproject.  Decision ontheseoptional features couldreduce the
totalprice.    

Theproject consists ofrestoring thetrailsintheircurrent locations exceptasnotedbelow.  Most
ofthetrailsare8feetinwidth, buttrailsA, BandJareabout5-6feetwide.    

TheTrailReconstruction Project

Theredsegment istheportionofthetrailthatwouldbepaidforbytheThreeRiversPark
District andbuilt totheirspecifications.  Theengineer’sestimate forthistrail
construction/reconstruction isabout $300,000

Theyellowsegments areallexisting trails.  Theestimate forthesetrails is $285,300.  The
estimates areprepared assuming thetrailswouldbeeight feetwide.  Trailsegment Jmaynot
beabletobeexpanded duetoseveral issues listedonthetableinthegraphicandthepotential
needforadditional right-of-way. Awetland delineation forthisportionoftheproject would
provide keyinformation andthatportionoftheproject design wouldbecompleted whenground
temperatures allow.  Keeping TrailJatthecurrent widthmayreduce theprice, although
specialized equipment couldalsobeneeded toconstruct thenarrower trails.  

Withthesidewalk construction inWalnutGroveVillas (ParkLanefromSeamans Drive to
Eureka Road), pedestrians/bikers fromYellowstone LaneandSeamans Drivewillhavedirect
access toTrailJandintoFreeman Park.    

Therearealsoafewoptional elements ofthetrailprojectaswell:  

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.    



Segment B: Repaving thistrailwasnotincluded inwiththeyellowcoded trailsasthetrail isnow
duplicated bytheThreeRiversParkDistrict trailproject. There areafewoptions forthistrail,  
including:  

1. Reconstruction inthesamelocation atthesamewidth (duetopotential wetland
impactsandtreeloss, coststoexpand tosixfeetwould increase exponentially).   
Likely ±$50,000.    

2. Reconstruct thesubgrade andaddclass5gravelorestablish turfforanatural trail
experience. Thecostwouldbeabout $4,500fortheremoval ofthepavement or
adding moregravelortopsoil forgrassseed.    

Segment L:  Segment Liscurrently unpaved andconnects thesoutherly parking areaanda
neighborhood entry. Thistrail istheonlyunpaved trailproposed tobepaved. Ifthecommission
would liketopavetheareaatthistime, thecostwouldbeabout $14,250.  

Segment G: Thisareaisanoldroadbed thatwaspreviously used forvehicle trafficconnecting
thenorthandsouthsegments ofthepark.  Nowitisforpedestrian access only, except for
emergency andmaintenance vehicles.  However, itretains itswidershapeandisinverypoor
condition. Thisconnection couldbereduced to12feetandreconstructed foritscurrent purpose.   
Thisworkwouldcostabout $38,500.  

Financial Implications: Thecostoftheproject couldbereduced without theseoptional
projects butincluding themwouldbecheaper nowthanaddressing themasaseparate project
later.  

Assuming thattheCityCouncil directsstafftomove forwardwithreplacing allthesegments and
theoptional B, GandLsegments aswell, thetotalcostwouldbeabout $390,000. The
estimates weregreater thanpreviously estimated.  Consequently, staff increased theexpected
cost fortheproject intheCIPto $400,000.    

Theestimates arehigher thanpreviously estimated fouryearsagowhenthis itemwasincluded
asaproject intheCIP. Tocover theadditional cost, staffarepreparing grantapplications and
willrequest CityCouncil support forthesegrantsonanupcoming agenda.  Oneofthegrants
wouldbetargeted specifically atoptional Segment G.    

Request/Recommendation:  Staff request direction ontheoptional portions ofthetrail
segments sothattheCityEngineer canfinalize theplansandreadytheplansforbid.  Staff
recommend thefollowing:  

1. TrailsegmentB: repave thetrailatthesamewidth.  
2. Trailsegment L: construct apaved trail inthislocation tocreateapavedwalkway

fromtheneighborhood through theballfields andintothedeveloped portionofthe
park.  

3. TrailsegmentG: reconstruct theroadbed to12feetasindicated aboveandreturn
theremaining areatoturf.  

4. Trailsegment J: explore expansion ofthetrailto8feettoprovideawiderentryinto
theparkforbothpedestrians andbikers.    





5A
MEETING

TYPE
REGULAR

CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:  AuthorizeEminentDomain - StrawberryLaneStreet
ImprovementsProject; CityProject19-05

Meeting Date: Monday, January 9, 2023
Prepared By:  Andrew Budde, CityEngineer
Reviewed By:  MarkNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:  EasementFigures, Resolution

Background:  TheShorewood CityCouncil awarded theStrawberry Lane
Improvements project which includes Peach Circle, Strawberry Court, drainage
improvements, watermain, andasidewalk ontheeastsideofStrawberry Lane.  The
project requires acquisition ofroadway easements anddrainage & utilityeasements to
complete theproject.  Staffhassecured mostofthepermanent easements required for
theprojectandmanyoftherightofentries.  Staff iscontinuing tomeetwithresidents
throughout theproject todiscuss andacquire theremaining rightofentries and
easements fortheproject.    

However, staffhasbeenunable toconnect withandgetaresponse fromoneproperty
ndowner aftermultiple attempts over11months.  Theproperty islocatedat26420W62

Street.  Theproperty isarentalandstaffhasstopped bytheproperty andwasprovided
aphone number totheowner.  Theowner wascalled onmultiple occasions with
voicemails asking forareturncall.  Staffhasalsosentcertified mailontwoseparate
occasions toboththeproperty address andthetaxaddress withsummary letters asking
tocalloremail staff.  Thesecond attempt ofcertified mail included theappraisal anda
formal offertoacquire theeasements.   Tothisdatenoconnection withtheproperty
ownerhasbeenmade.   Forthecitytobeabletoacquire legalaccess tothe
easements andmaintain theproject construction schedule, itwouldbeappropriate for
thecitytoinitiate theeminent domain process.  Ifinitiated inJanuary, thecitywould be
haveaccess theproperty inMaytoallowforconstruction.  Staff fromCambell-Knutson
isprepared itassistwiththeeminent domain process.   

FinancialConsiderations: Costs foreasement acquisition hasbeenaccounted for in
theCapital Improvement Planandwouldutilizeacombination ofStreet & UtilityBonds,  
Water Fund, Sanitary Fund, andStorm Sewer Fund.    

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



Recommendation/ActionRequested: Staff recommends theCityCouncil adopt the
Resolution assubmitted thatauthorizes staff topursue eminent domain forthe
Strawberry LaneStreet Improvements project.   









CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTIONNO. 23-006

RESOLUTIONAUTHORIZINGEMINENTDOMAINOFLANDFOR
PUBLICPURPOSESFORTHESTRAWBERRYLANESTREETIMPROVEMENT

PROJECT, CITYPROJECT19-05

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood doeshereby determine thatitis
necessary forapublicuseandpurpose toacquire theproperty legally described onthe
attached Exhibit “A”, subject toengineering modifications, ifany, forpurposes in
connection withtheStrawberry LaneStreet Improvements Project, CityProject No.19- 
05.  

WHEREAS, Citystaffandconsultants haveandwillcontinue toworkwiththeproperty
owners toacquire thenecessary easements and/orfeetitle; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil findsthatdevelopment andconstruction conditions related
totheareamakeitnecessary toacquire titleto, andpossession of, theproperty as
soonaspossible inorder fortheproject toproceed inanefficient, costeffective and
expeditious manner.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITYOF
SHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA:  

1. ThattheCityAttorney isauthorized tocommence eminent domain proceedings
pursuant toMinnesota Statutes Chapter 117toacquire thenecessary easements
and/orfeetitleidentified ontheattached Exhibit “A”, subject toengineering
modifications, ifneeded.  

2. ThattheCityAttorney isauthorized toacquire thenecessary property interests
pursuant tothe “quick take” provisions ofMinnesota Statutes Section 117.042.   

3. ThattheMayor andtheCityAdministrator areauthorized toexecute all
documents necessary, intheopinion oftheCityAttorney, toeffect theacquisition
ofthenecessary property interests.  

1



4. TheCityisintheprocess ofobtaining appraisals oftheproperty beingacquired.   
TheCityCouncil hereby authorizes theCityAdministrator toapprove the
appraisals andmake formaloffers totheproperty owners subject toCity
Council’sfinalapproval.  

thADOPTEDbytheShorewood CityCouncil this9 dayofJanuary 2023.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk

2



EXHIBIT “A”  

3



5B
MEETING

TYPE
Regular
Meeting

CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:  Approve Change Order for2022StreetSweeping Removals,   
CityProject 22-08

Meeting Date: Monday, January 9, 2023
Prepared by:  Andrew Budde, CityEngineer
Attachments:  Overview Map, Payment Application

Background:  Staffhasrequested quotes toremove street sweepings thathavebeen
stockpiled atPublic Works overthelastseveral yearsandwasoriginally estimated tobe
500cubic yards.  Theworkwasquoted, andthelowquotewasawarded toW.M.  
Mueller onNovember 14, 2022, intheamount of $26,725.00.  After theloading and
hauling process wascompleted, staffwasnotified bythecontractor thattheyhad
hauled awaymuch morethan500CUYD.  Staff investigated theconcern andidentified
thattheoriginal amount quantified onlyincluded oneofthetwostockpiles atthesite.   
Thesouthern stockpile wassurveyed anddetermined tobe500CYCU.  Thenorthern
stockpile thatwasnotincluded intheoriginal estimates andwasquantified tobe734
CUYDbasedontrucktickets.  

FinancialConsiderations: Costsforthisworkhad beenbudgeted forintheCapital
Improvement Plan (CIP) andwouldutilize theStormwater Management Fund.  Thecity
hadbudgeted $37,100in2022forthiseffort intheCIP.  Theoriginal quoteawardwasfor
26,725.00.  Thetotalchange order isfor $35,562.30.  Theamount over the2022CIP

budget amount is $25,187.30.  Staffproposes toutilizeaportion ofthe $100,000fromthe
2022CIPitemfromStormPondSediment Cleaning & Disposal topaythebalance tothe
contractor.       

Recommendation/ActionRequested: Staff recommends approving theChange Order
intheamountof $35,562.30toW.M. Mueller & Sons, Inc. forthe2022Street Sweeping
Removals, CityProject22-08.  

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1









CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject: 2023AnnualAppointments 6A
Meeting Date: Monday, January 9, 2023
Prepared by:  MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator MEETINGTYPE
Reviewed by:  Sandie Thone, CityClerk/HRDirector RegularMeeting
Attachments:  CopyofResolution 22-007: 2022Appointments

DraftResolution 23-008: 2023Appointments
Advisory andCommission Liaison Expectations andRoles

Background: Minnesota StateStatute requires thecitycouncil toconduct thefollowing
business atthefirstannual meeting oftheyear:  

Designate anofficial newspaper
Appoint anacting mayor fromamong thecouncilmembers.  Theacting mayor
shallperform thedutiesofthemayor ifthere isavacancy inthemayor’sposition
orduring themayor’sdisability orabsence.  
Select anofficial depository forcityfunds (Thismustbedonewithin30daysof
thestartofthecity’sfiscal year).  

Inaddition, although notrequired bystatestatute, manycitycouncils willalsodothe
following atthefirstmeeting oftheyear:  

Review different council appointments tocityboards andcommissions.    
Review council bylaws andmakeanyneeded changes.  
Assign committee duties tomembers.  
Approve official bonds thathavebeenfiledwiththeclerk.    

Attached youwillfindResolution 22-007whichshows theappointments for2022.   
Council shall review anddetermine theappointments asdelineated inthedraft
Resolution 23-008for2023andappoint accordingly.    

Recommendation/ActionRequested: Staff respectfully recommends thecouncil
review theattached 2022Appointments andtheAdvisory andCommission Liaison
Expectations andRolesanddesignate 2023Appointments asappropriate inthedraft
Resolution 23-008andanyothersasnecessary.    
Motion, secondandsimplemajorityrequired.    

ConnectiontoVision /Mission: Consistency inproviding thecommunity withquality
public services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable
taxbaseandsound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary
leadership.  

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION 23-007

ARESOLUTIONDESIGNATING2023ANNUALAPPOINTMENTS
TOCERTAINOFFICESANDPOSITIONSWITHINTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD

WHEREAS, ithasbeenthepolicyoftheShorewood CityCouncil tomakeannual
appointments tofillcertain offices andpositions within theCitygovernment atthe
beginning ofeachyear; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVEDbytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood as
follows:  

1. Thatthefollowing persons areappointed tothefollowing offices andpositions:  

Acting Mayor:         

Council Rep/ParkCommission Liaison:  

January – June2023:         

July – December 2023:         

Council Rep/Planning Commission Liaison:  

January – June2023:       

July – December 2023:         

Council Liaison toSCEC
Council Liaison Metro Cities & League ofMNCities:     

Alternate MetroCities & LMC:       

LakeMinnetonka Communications Commission:    

Alternate LMCC:           

SouthLakeMinnetonka PDCoordinating Committee:    

Alternate SLMPD CC:         

Excelsior FireDistrict Board Member:       

Alternate EFDBoard Member:        

Personnel Committee:         

Weed Inspector:       Mayor Labadie-perStateStatute

Assistant WeedInspector:     

Electronic Funds Transfer Authority:    



2. Thatthefollowing other appointments aremade:  

CityAttorney:      JaredShepherd, Campbell Knutson, P.A.  

CityProsecutor:      Campbell Knutson, P.A._  

MCE Representative:      

3. Official Depositories: Alerus Bank, 4MFundandother__  

Depositories asnecessary_______  

4. Official Newspaper:   SunSailor (andLakerPioneer Newsas

applicable)  

5. ThattheBlanket Bond (Official Bonds) isapproved.  

6. Inabsence oftheCityClerk, theCityAdministrator isauthorized tosigncontracts on

behalf oftheCity.  

Thatsuchappointments shall takeeffectonthedatehereofandshallcontinue forthe
remainder oftheyearoruntilsuchtimeasasuccessor isappointed bytheCityCouncil.  

thADOPTEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITYOFSHOREWOODthis9 dayof
January 2023.   

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
ATTEST:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:  ParkCommissionAppointments 6BMeeting Date: Monday, January 9, 2023
Prepared by:  Sandie Thone, CityClerk/HRDirector MEETING

TYPEReviewed by:  Marie Darling, Planning Director
Attachments: Resolution Regular

Meeting

Background:  TheCityCouncil conducted interviews attheirworksession onJanuary
9, 2023withtwoapplicants; DavidGarske andAmyWenner.  Eachapplicant currently
isseeking torepresent thecityontheParkCommission where threevacancies
currently exist.  Staff requests theCityCouncil discuss theinterviews with theapplicants
andconsider thefollowing appointments:   

ParkCommission fortheTermending February 28, 2025:  

1)  

ParkCommission fortheTerm ending February 28, 2024:  

2)   

ActionRequested: Forpassage oftheseappointments aresolution hasbeenprepared
andisattached.  Motion, second andsimple majority voterequired.    

ConnectiontoVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable tax
base, andsound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary
leadership.       

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



RESOLUTION23-008
CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

ARESOLUTIONMAKINGAPPOINTMENTSTO
THESHOREWOODPARKCOMMISSION

WHEREAS, theresignation ofJimHeinz, Joanne Schmid, andMattGallivan left
vacancies ontheShorewood ParkCommission ending inFebruary of2023, 2024, and
2025; and,  

WHEREAS, theCityadvertised forapplicants forthevacancy andreceived applications
fromDavidGarske andAmyWenner; and,  

WHEREAS, DavidGarske andAmyWenner were interviewed bytheCityCouncil on
January 9, 2023.   

NOWTHEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
SHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA thattheCouncil makes thefollowing appointments:  

ParkCommission

foratermtocommence immediately andexpire February, 2024.  

foratermtocommence immediately andexpireFebruary, 2025.  

AdoptedbytheCityCouncilofShorewood, Minnesotathis9thdayofJanuary
2023.               

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk


	Agenda
	2A Minutes 12-12-22 WS
	2B Minutes 12-12-22 Canvas Board Mtg
	2C Minutes 12-12-22 Reg Mtg
	2D Verified Claims
	2E Master Fee Schedule
	2F 2023 Mileage Reimbursement Rate
	2G Council Out of State Travel Policy
	2H Advertisement for LEO Public Works
	2I Donations to Arctic Fever Event
	2J Approve Seasonal Hires
	2K Agreements for Strawberry Lane Street Improvements Project
	2L Excelsior Woods
	2M COVID Leave Expiration
	2N Recreation Specialist
	4A Deterring Vandalism
	4B Freeman Park Trail Rehabilitation Project
	5A Eminent Domain
	5B Change Order for 2022 Street Sweeping Removals
	6A 2023 Annual Appointments
	6B Park Commission Appointments

